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August 4, 1975 

The Honorable Maurice S. Pipkin 
Executive Director 
Judicial Qualifications Commission 
Austin, Texas 78711 

Re: Complaints against Judge 0. P. Carrillo 

Dear Mr. Pipkin, 

('I.E HI\ 

1:..\USON It J.\l '!-\SOl'\: 

.\f)MI:'\J~n·H.\TI\'1': .\SST. 
1\1.\IH;!\HET U. LI<::\1MO:-.;D 

Pursuant to the request of the Judicial Qualifications 
Commission, transmitted to the Supreme Court of Texas in your ~ 
letter of August 4, 1975, Judge James R. Meyers, Judge of the 
126th District Court sitting in Travis County, Texas, is hereby 
appointed Master. 

JRG:kh 

Sincerely yours, 

if'i?~ 
Joe R. Greenhill 
Chief Justice 
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August Ui, 1975 

CERTIFIED MAIL - RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

Honorable 0, P •. Carrillo 
229th Judicial District Court 
San Diego, Texas 78384 

Dear Judge Carrillo: 

The State Judicial Qualifications Commission, meet-
ing in Austin on Saturday, August 16, 1975, has set the date 
for the Formal Hearing in the matter of the charges lodged 
against you by the Commission for October 2, 1975, in 
Corpus Christi, Texas. 

This notification is pursuant to Rule 6 of the "Rules i 
for the Removal or Retirement of Judges". 

You will be informed as to the exact location of the 
hearing within a short time. 

Sincerely, 

~-·•A ,~: ~ -urt~- :s~ ~~"""""'" 

CC: Hon. Arthur Mitchell 
Attorney at Law 
1122 Colorado St. 
Austin, Texas 78701 

Maurice S. Pipkin 
Executive Director 

CC: Hon. o. P. Carrillo 
Benavides, Texas 78341 
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JAMES R. MEYERS ~Vttf 
DIIITitiCT JUDGE 

Mr. Maurice Pipkin 

STATE~~.jTEXAS 
October 7, 1975 

State Judicial Qualifications Commission 
Supreme Court Building 
Austin, Texas 78701 

Mr. Arthur Mitchell 
Attorney at Law 
1122 Colorado 
Austin, Texas 78701 

Mr. David Kendall 
Assistant Attorney General 
Capitol Station 
Austin, Texas 78711 

Gentlemen: 
Re: O.P. Carrillo 

COUNTY 
COURTHOUSE 
AUSTIN. TEXAS 

Before the State Judicial 
Qualifications Commission 
Inquiry Concerning a Judge 
No. 5 

I have recessed the above styled matter from October 2, 
1975, to November 3, 1975. I think it would be helpful if 
Mr. Mitchell and a representative of the Attorney General's 
Office and I meet for a pre-hearing conference soon. 

/jl 

s· rely yours, 

~ ~.1/.J:W/-f~ 
udge, 126th District Court 

Travis County, Texas 

\~ 
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October 28, 1975 

Honorable Arthur Mitchell 
Mitchell, George and Belt 
1122 Colorado 
Austin, Texas 78701 

Dear Mr. Mitchell: 

Re: Before the State Judicial 
Qualifications Commission, 
Inquiry Concerning a Judge, 
No. 5 

This is to acknowledge recent receipt of your letter 
dat~d October 20, 1975, wherein you "request a hearing 
before the Commission and/or the Supreme Court for a de­
termination of the questions of law involved in (the) Answer 
prior to the trial of the case." 

several of the questions raised in the Answer are also 
raised in some of the pleadings you have filed with the 
Master on behalf of Judge Carrillo. It appears at this time 
that the questions of law involved in the Answer would be 
more appropriately presented to the Master or to the Com­
mission after the Report of the Master is filed with the 
Commission. As to your request for a hearing before the 
Supreme Court, an analysis of the Texas Constitution, the 
appropriate statutes and the Supreme Court Rules for the 
Removal or Retirement of Judges, uoes not indicate procedures 
for such a hearing at this stage of the proceedings. 

Accordingly, the above referenced request is respect­
fully denied. 

MSP:ap 

Very truly yours, 

, ;JJ/,:t.:-t<:- ~-C~ '"-' <> 

Maurice S. Pipkin 
Executive Director 
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BEFORE THE 

STATE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS COMMISSION 

INQUIRY CONCERNING A JUDGE, NO. 5 

TRIAL AMENDMENT TO FIRST AMENDED NOTICE OF FORMAL PROCEEDINGS 

TO THE HONORABLE O. P. CARRILLO: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Rule 11, Rules for the 

Removal and Retirement of Judges, as adopted and promulgated 

by the Supreme court of Texas, you the said o. P. Carrillo, 

Judge of the 229th Judicial District of Texas, are hereby 

given notice that Paragraph V of the First Amended Notice of 

Formal Proceedings is amended to include the following charge 

which will be numbered Paragraph V-A. Such additional charge 

is set forth to conform to the proof at trial and the evidence 

adduced therein: 

V-A 

During the period from January 1, 1971, until May, 1974, 

you wrongfully appropriated to your own use and benefit the 

services of one Cleofas Gonzalez. At all times pertinent 

hereto, the said Cleofas Gonzalez was an employee of the County 

of Duval, receiving a salary from the County of Duval, Texas 

in an amount ranging between two hundred and twenty-five and 

five hundred dollars per month. During the period in question, 

the said Cleofas Gonzalez performed labor as general manager 

and office manager of the Farm & Ranch Supply, a store owned 

by you and your brother, Rarniro Carrillo, located in Benavides, 

Duval County, Texas. In return for the labor performed by the 

said Cleofas Gonzalez, you never paid the said Cleofas Gonzalez 

• 
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any money or anythi~g of value as compensation. Instead, the 

only compensation received by Cleofas Gonzalez for services 

and labor was the salary he received from Duval county. The 

labor and services performed by the said Cleofas Gonzalez in 

your store was a wrongful appropriation by you of the value of 

such services and labor with the intent permanently to deprive 

Duval County of such value. 

Such conduct was willful and persistent; such conduct was 

clearly inconsistent with the proper performance of your duties 

as a District Judge, and was clearly of a na·ture to ·cast dis-

credit upon the judiciary. 

You are hereby notified and informed that you have a 

right to file a written answer to the foregoing amended 

charges and to prepare and present your defense against the 

matters charged thereby within a reasonable period of time 

after service of the Trial Amendment To First Amended Notice 

of Formal Proceedings as determined by the Master pursuant 

to the provisions of Rule 11, Rules for the Removal or Retirement 

of Judges adopted and promulgated by the Supreme Court of Texas. 

DONE THIS day of 
----------------------------· 1975. 

STATE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS 
COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF TEXAS. 

BY'~~~,~~.,,-~~~~~~ Maur~ce S. P1pk~n, Exec. D~rector, 
Acting for and on behalf of the 
State Judicial Qualifications Comm. 
with full authority from the 
Comm. so to act. 

-2-
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"'~ TAXABLE COST $ I II -

PAID BY PLAINTIFF 

IN THE MATTER OF 

PROCEEDING OF STATE JUDICIAL 

QUALIFICATIONS COMMISSION NO. 5 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT 

OF DUVAL COUNTY, TEXAS 

229th JUDICIAL DISTRICT 

DEPOSITION OF CLINTON MANGES 

taken on the 22nd day of October, 1975, beginning at 

9:10 a.m. in the County Law Library, Duval County Annex 

Building, San Diego, Texas, before Walter H. Hickman, 

a Notary Public in and for Travis County, Texas, pursuant 

to Order.of the 229th Judicial District Court, a copy of 

which is attached hereto, and the following proceedings 

were reported by Hickman Reporting Service, 504 Travis 

Building, Austin, Texas 78701. 

HRS 
HUB 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
THE QUALITY REPORTERS 

Austin, Texas 476-5363 

• 



OOSii 
APPEARANCES 

2 

3 FOR THE COMMISSION: 

4 MESSRS. JOHN ODAM and MAX FLUSCHE, Assistant 

5 Attorneys General, Hearing Examiners, Supreme Court 

6 Building, Austin, Texas 78701 

7 

8 FOR THE RESPONDENT: 

9 MR. JAMES BATES, Bates & Hendrix, 310 South 

10 Closner Street, Edinburg, Texas 78539 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

!6 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 
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I STIPULATION 

2 

3 IT IS STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between 

4 counsel for the respective parties hereto that the 

5 deposition of the witness, CLINTON MANGES, may be taken 

6 at this time and place before Walter H. Hickman, a Notary 

7 Public in and for Travis County, Texas, with the same 

8 force and effect as if he were a Notary Public in and for 

9 Duval County,' Texas. 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2l 

22 

23 

24 

25 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 



~ 
MR. CLINTON MANGES 

2 was called as a witness by the Commission and, being 

3 first duly sworn, testified as follows: 

4 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

5 BY MR. ODAM 

6 Q Mr. Manges, as I introduced myself to you ear: 

7 my name is John Odam. I am with the Attorney General's 

8 Office. Mr. Max Flusche is here with me, and we have 

9 been appointed by the Judicial Qualifications Commissioi 

10 as Examiners in this Judicial Qualifications Proceeding 

II No. 5. 

I2 To give you just a little bit of background 

I3 about the taking of this deposition, at first we had ser 

I4 out notices of the deposition, pursuant to the rule, to 

I5 Mr. Mitchell, counsel for the Judge who is under considE 

I6 tion in No. 5. He responded that he would not stipulatE 

I7 to the taking of the deposition nor would he be present. 

I8 We then felt it necessary to get a court order, pursuant 

I9 to 5966, which Senator Bates is familiar with, and got ~ 

20 court order first from Judge Blackwell in the 167th in 

2I Travis County and then eventually from Judge Darrell 

22 Hester, who is the presiding judge in the 229th, and 

23 pursuant thereto the subpoena was served by Ranger Powel 

24 I guess, last Friday. 

25 That is the background of the taking of this 
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deposition which pertains to the Judicial Qualifications 

2 Proceedings, and I will not go into all the detail, but 

3 as we have stated before the start of the deposition, 

4 this taking of the deposition, except which is necessary 

5 as a matter of public record which had to be filed in the 

6 229th application-order and the time you had to appear, 

7 etc., are matters which are confidential; therefore, 

s their contents will not be revealed until such time as 

9 they are actually filed with the Texas Supreme Court, if 

10 the Judicial Qualifications Commission makes a recommenda-

II tion to the Texas Supreme Court. So, with that background 

12 we will proceed with the questions on the deposition. 

13 The first question I would like to ask you, Mr. • 14 Manges, is whether or not you know Judge 0. P. Carrillo? 

15 A Yes, I know him. 

16 Q Could I ask you, how long have you known Mr. 

17 Carrillo? 

18 A Oh, I don''t really recall how lpng. I know 

19 it's been several years. 

20 Q Do you live in Duval County at the present time? 

21 A Yes. 

22 Q How long have you resided in Duval County? 

23 A Three or four years. 

24 Q And prior to that time, where did you live? 

25 A San Antonio. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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How are you employea1 

2 A Self-employed. 

3 Q What type of business interests are you engagt 

4 in, in the self-employment? 

s A I do some ranching, a little oil business. 

6 Q Is the name of your ranch "Duval County" or 

7 "Duval-

8 A Yes, sir. "Duval County Ranch Company." 

9 Q Duval County Ranch Company. Is that a corpora 

10 tion? 

II A Yes. 

12 Q What is your position, if any, with that corpo 

13 tion? 

14 A I am now, at the present, chairman of the boar 

IS Q By the name, I take it that is located, obviou 

16 in Duval County? 

17 A Yes, sir. 

18 Q Is that out somewhere around Freer? 

19 A Yes. 

20 Q You say you have lived in Duval County three 

21 or four years. Back now, how long do you say you have 

22 known 0. P. Carrillo? 

23 A Several years. 

24 Q Would it be more than-

25 A I don't exactly recall how long. 
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Q Do you recall if you knew him before you moved 

2 into Duval County, personally? 

3 A Yes. 

4 Q Are you familiar with a lawsuit that was styled, 

5 "Clinton Manges vs. M.A. Guerra, et al," Cause No. 3953? 

6 A Jim, some of these things I don't recall. Which 

7 lawsuit are they talking about? There are fifteen lawsuits 

8 or more that have been filed. 

9 MR. BATES: Plus three today. 

IO A I don't know. I refuse to answer on the ground--

II Can we stipulate that? Would it be all right, or do you 

12 want me to go into detail? 

I3 MR. BATES: Let me write it out for you • 14 so you will be sure. 

15 A Okay. 

I6 (Brief delay) 

17 MR. ODAM: Walter, would you read the ques-

18 tion to him again? 

19 (The last question was read by the Reporter.) 

20 A Okay. I refuse to answer the question on the 

21 grounds the answer might tend to incriminate me. This 

22 refusal is based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution! 

23 of the United States. 

24 Q Do you ~now whether or not the previously re-

25 ferred lawsuit, Manges vs. Guerra, had been pending on 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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the docket prior to the time that•Judge Carrillo assumec 

2 his duties as Judge of the 229th District Court? 

3 A I refuse to answer the question on the ground! 

4 the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusa 1 : 

5 based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

6 United States. 

i (Discussion off the record) 

8 Q Mr. Manges, do you recall whether or not, on 

9 or about December 10 of 1970, 0. P. Carrillo received f: 

10 you ten shares of stock in the First State Bank and Tru1 

II Company of Rio Grande City, Texas? 

12 A I refuse to answer the question on the ground1 

13 the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal 

14 based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

15 United States. 

16 Q Do you know whether or not, assuming that the 

17 ten shares of stock were transferred, do you know wheth 

IB or not that bank stock was included within the property 

19 that was in dispute in the lawsuit, Manges vs. Guerra, 

20 and was in custodia legis? 

21 A I refuse to answer the question on the ground 

22 the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal 

23 based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

24 United States. 

25 Q Mr. Manges, do you know, or do you recall 
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whether or not you caused to be ~ssued a check on your 

2 banking account at the First State Bank and Trust, dated 

3 January 27, 1971, a check in the amount of $6,915.55 

4 payable to the order of Riata Cadillac in San Antonio, 

5 Texas? 

6 A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

7 the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal is 

B based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

9 United States. 

10 Q Do you know whether or not, Mr. Manges, the sum 

11 of money which was previously referred to, $6,915.55, 

12 was to be applied to the purchase price of a 1971 Cadillac 

13 that 0. P. Carrillo had ordered? • 14 A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

15 the answer might tend to incriminate me. This re fus a 1 is 

16 based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

17 United States. 

18 Q Mr. Manges, do you know whether of not the sum 

19 of $6,915.55 was applied as credit for the benefit of 

20 0. P. Carrillo for tl;lis Cadillac? 
\ 

2l A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

22 the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal is 

23 based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the .. 

24 United States. 

25 Q In the Order signed by Judge Hester and in the 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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subpoena issued pursuant thereto, the subpoena stated th 

2 you were requested to bring with you today at the taking 

3 of this deposition a cancelled check dated on or about 

4 January 27th, 1971, in the sum of $6,915.55 payable to 

5 Riata Cadillac Company, San Antonio, Texas, drawn on the 

6 First State Bank and Trust Company of Rio Grande City. 

7 Now, Mr. Manges, did you bring with you today that check 

8 in said amount? 

9 A It is impossible, Mr. Odam, for me to bring th 

10 check because it hasn't been in my possession. 

II Q To whom did you turn the check over? 

12 A As I recall, I think I gave it to Mr. Arthur 

13 Mitchell and he, in turn ,-in another subpoena from the 

14 House of Representatives, they offered that check. Eith• 

15 he gave it to them and they still have it, or we gave it 

16 back. I know we took it to the House of Representatives 

17 and we haven't seen it since then. I have been trying tc 

18 find it. 

19 Q This was in connection with the impeachment 

20 hearings that the House had? 

21 A 

22 

23 

24 

25 Q 

Yes. 

MR. ODAM: Mark that, please. 

(The instrument referred to 
was marked "COM-1 11 for identifi'­
cation, and is attached.) 

Mr. Manges, I show you a Xeroxed copy of a chec 
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and ask if you could identify "that check? 

' A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

3 the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal is 

4 based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

5 United States. 

6 Q Could you identify, Mr. Manges, whether or not 

7 the signature on the check which is Commission Exhibit 

8 No. 1, is your signature? 

9 A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

10 the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal is 

11 based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

12 United States. 

13 Q Mr. Manges, , do you ~.now ·Whether or not 0. P. • 14 Carrillo, in the summer of 1970·;· ordered from Riata 

15 Cadillac a 1971 Cadillac? 

16 A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

17 the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal is 

18 based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

19 United States. 

20 Q · Do you know whether or not, Mr. Manges, that an 

21 allowance was made for the trade-in by 0. P. Carrillo and 

22 the balance on the purchase price was paid by you on the 

23 Cadillac? 

24 A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

25 the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal is 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

2 
United States. 

3 
Q In the summer of 1971, after 0. P. Carrillo 

4 had assumed the duties of District Judge of the 229th 

5 Judicial District Court, did 0. P. Carrillo enter into a 

6 open-end grazing lease with you, for grazing rights? 

A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

8 the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal i 

9 based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

10 United States. 

11 Q Assuming that there was a grazing lease entered 

12 into, was this grazing rights for approximately 1,200 to 

13 1,500 acres? 

14 A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

IS the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal i 

16 based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

17 United States. 

18 Q Do you know whether or not, assuming there was 

19 such a lease entered into, the land covered by this open 

20 end lease agreement was included in the realty that was 

21 involved in the receivership suit to which I previously 

22 referred, Manges versus Guerra, to which you were a 

23 party plaintiff? 

24 A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

25 the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal i 
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based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

2 United States. 

3 Q Do you know whether or not, subsequent to the 

4 lease that I just referred to, assuming that it was 

5 entered into, whether 0. P. Carrillo entered into an 

6 oral agreement with you under the terms of which 0. P. 

7 Carrillo acquired grazing rights on an additional 5,000 

8 to 6,000 acres of land which was included in the property 

9 suits, Manges versus Guerra? 

10 A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

11 the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal is 

12 based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

13 United States. 

14 Q Assuming that there was a lease entered into 

15 as referred to in the last question, do you know whether 

16 or not the lease term was for three years? 

17 A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

1s the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal is 

19 based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

20 United States. 

21 Q Could you please state for the record, whether 

22 or not one of the conditions of such lease, assuming that. 

23 there was a lease entered into, was that 0. P. Carrillo 

24 was to pay you, the party plaintiff in the above referenc-

25 ed case, the consideration of $1.00 for the lease? 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

2 the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal i 

3 based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

4 United States. 

5 Q Assuming that there was such a lease entered 

6 into, do you know whether or not the consideration to be 

7 paid was to be paid at the end of the three year lease 

8 term? 

9 A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 
_, 

10 the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal i 

II based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

12 United States. 

13 Q Assuming that there was such an open-end grazin: 

14 lease entered into and then then additions that were 

15 made to it at a later time, do you know whether or not 

16 there was a written document on the lease agreement? 

17 A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

18 the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal i: 

19 based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

20 United States. 

21 Q Was the lease agreement ever reduced to writing' 

22 A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

23 the answer might terid to incriminate me. This refusal i: 

24 based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

25 United States. 
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Q Will you please state whether or not, to your 

2 own personal knowledge, 0. P. Carrillo has ever served 

3 as director of the First State Bank and Trust? 

A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

5 the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal is 

6 based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

7 United States. 

8 Q Do you know whether of not 0. P. Carrillo was 

9 appointed director of the First State Bank and Trust on 

10 December 10, 1970? 

II A I refuse to answer the question on the grourlds 

12 the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal is 

based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

14 United States. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q Do you know whether or not, to your own personal 

knowledge, at an annual stockholders meeting, held January 

14, 1971, 0. P. Carrillo was elected director of the 

First State Bank upon your motion? 

A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal is 

based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

United States. 
' 

MR. ODAM: I will ask you to mark this as 

Commission Exhibit No. 2, please sir. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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2 

3 Q 

(The instrument referred to 
was marked "COM-2" for ident 
cation, and is attached.) 

Mr. Manges, I show you a copy purported to be 

4 the minutes of the annual stockholders meeting at the 

5 above referenced meeting, held January 14, 1971, and wi 

6 give you an ?PPOrtunity to look it and study it. 

7 A (The witness examined the document.) 

8 Q At that stockholders meeting it was reported 

9 that one of the directors present was Clinton Manges, 

1o owning~ 740 shares in .the bank. Could you confirm or 

11 deny that you were present at said meeting? 

12 A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

13 the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal i1 

14 based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

1 5 United States. 

16 Q Could you confirm or deny that you owned 740 

17 
shares in the Rio Grande City Bank at that time? 

18 
A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

19 the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal i 

20 
based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

21 
United States. 

22 Q The minutes reflect that of the total shares 

23 
represented there were 810 shares, and that on a motion, 

24 
the minutes state, made by you, several directors were 

25 
elected, one of whom was 0. P. Carrillo. Do you recall 
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attending that meeting and moving that 0. P. Carrillo be 

2 elected director? 

3 A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

4 the answer might terid to incriminate me. This refusal is 

s based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

6 United States. 

7 Q Do you recall the circums.tances that brought 

s about 0. P. Carrillo's taking a position as director on 

9 the First State Bank and Trust? 

IO A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

II the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal is 

I2 

I3 

I4 

IS 

I6 

I7 

IS 

I9 

20 

2I 

22 

23 

24 

25 

based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

United States. 

Q Do you know whether or not at the January 13, 

1972, annual stockholders meeting of the First State 

Bank and Trust, 0. P. Carrillo was or was not elected 

director of the First State Bank and Trust? 

A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal is 

based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

United States. 

MR. ODAM: Will you mark, this? 

(The instrument referred to 
was marked "COM -3" for identifi 
cation, and is attached.) 

Q Mr. Manges, I show you a copy of what the 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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·non2"l ""~ 
court reporter has marked as Commission Exhibit No. 3. 

2 It is purported to be a copy of the January 13, 1972 

3 annual stockholders meeting of the First State Bank anc 

4 Trust, and give you an opportunity to examine it. 

5 A (The witne:ss examined the document.) 

6 Q The minutes of the meeting state that your sto 

1 was voted by proxy and-that you hkd'730 shares out of a 

s total of 810 shares that were voted. Your stock was 

9 voted by proxy. Do you recall who you asked to vote 

10 your stock by proxy? 

II A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

12 the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal i 

13 based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

14 United States. 

15 Q Do you recall how you asked that your shares b 

16 voted by proxy? 

17 A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

18 the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal 

19 based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

20 United States. 

21 Q The minutes state that upon motion by Mr. Robe 

22 G. Rishmond that several directors were elected by 

23 unaminous vote of 810 shares, your shares totaling 730 

24 810, and that 0. P. Carrillo was ele~ted director. Do 

25 you recall who you instructed to vote your shares for 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

i 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

l.9 

000?8 N"Jo0~8 
0. P. Carrillo to be a director at that meeting? 

A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal is 

based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

United States. 

Q Do you know whether or not at the January 11, 

1973, annual stockholders meeting of the First State Bank 

and Trust whether or not 0. P. Carrillo was elected 

director of the First State Bank and Trust? 

A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal is 

based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

Uhited States. 

(An instrument was marked 
"COM-4" for identification, 
and is attached.) 

Q Mr. Manges, I show you a Xeroxed copy of what 

17 purposts to be the minutes of the January 11, 1973, 

18 annual stockholders meeting of the First Stat'e 'Bank and 

19 Trust for you~ ~xamination. 

20 A (The witnetu~ ,;,examined the document.) 
... ,. ..... l'•" 

21 Q Mr. Hickman has marked it as Commission Exhibit 

22 No. 4, Reading from the minutes it indicates that there 

23 was a total of 5, 806 shares voted by proxy at that time, 

24 of 5,806 shares, and there were a total of 980 shares 

25 present, Of the 5,806 you had 5,617 shares voted. The 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

r..p,2.n :ff'rK:l. 
"". ' ~;:-~ ( ' . .; .7 

minutes also reflect that 0. P. Carrillo, among others, 

was unamiously elected by a vote of 6,786 shares to be-

come a director of that bank. Do you recall whether ot 

not you instructed someone to vote your shares unamiou~ 

for 0. P. Carrillo to be elected director of the bank? 

A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal 

based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

United States. 

Q The minutes also reflect that of the 6,786 

shares represented that you owned 5,617. Would you sta 

whether or not, you were at that time an owner of the 

majority of the stock of the First State Bank and Trust 

A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

15 the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal 

16 is based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of 

17 the United States. 

18 Q Would you state, whether or not at the present 

19 time you .are the owner of a majority of the shares of t 

20 stock in the First State Bank and Trust? 

21 A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

22 the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal 

23 based on the'Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

24 United States. 

25 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

i 

8 

9 

10 

II 

I 2 

13 

14 

15 

Q 

OHH3{) ~ "" ~3(} 
(An ~nstrument was marked 
"COM-5" for identification 
and is attached.) 

Mr. Manges, I show you what Mr. Hickman has 

marked as Exhibit No. 5, which is a certificate of the 

21 

First State Bank and Trust, indicating that 0. P. Carrillo 

was the owner of ten shares of stock and that stock trans-

fer book indicates that the ten shares of stock were 

transferred from you to 0. P. Carrillo, and I ask you to 

examine it, please. 

A (The witness examined the instrument.) 

Q I will ask you to state for the record whether 

or not you have ever seen the original copy or a copy of 

this certificate transferring these shares to 0. P. 

Carrillo before? 

A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

16 the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal 

17 is based on the F~fth Amendment to the Constitution of 

18 the United States. 

19 Q Referring back to the Cadillac automobile, would 

20 you please state for the record the reasons that you 

21 made the payment, assuming that a payment was made by you, 

22 on the Cadillac automobile_referred to ~n the previous 

23 questions? 

24 A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

25 the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal is 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of 

2 the United States. 

3 Q Please state whether or not the payment on the 

4 Cadillac automobile was a gift from you to 0. P. Carrill 

5 A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

6 the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal i 

7 based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

8 United States. 

9 Q Will you please state for the record whether or 

- 10 n0t you have asked 0. P. Carrillo to serve as a director 

11 on the Board of The First State Bank and Trust of Rio 

12 Grande City? 

13 A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

14 the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal i 

I 5 based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

16 United States. 

17 Q Will you state whether or not the sh•aes of sto 

18 were transferred to 0. P. Carrillo so that he might be 

19 qualified to serve as a director of said bank? 

20 A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

21 the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal i: 

22 based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

23 United States. 

24 Q Do you recall, assuming that a lease was enterec 

25 into with 0. P. Carrllo, do you recall what the rate of 



23 

· nno:tz offl'\32 
the lease was for the land that I previously asked you 

2 about? 

3 A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

4 the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal is 

5 based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

6 United States. 

Q Do you presently own a piece of property in 

8 Benavides, Texas? 

9 A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

10 the answer might terid to incriminate me. This refusal is 

11 based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

12 United States. 

I 3 Q Assuming that you own a piece of pr~perty in • 14 Benavides, Texas, do you know whether or not you acquired 

15 that piece of property from 0. P. Carrillo? 

16 I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

17 the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal is 

18 based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

19 United States. 

20 Q Do you recall a transaction occuring on or about 

21 October 12, 1970, whereby 0. P. Carrillo conveyed to you 

22 a certain piece of pr.operty in Benavides, Texas? 

23 A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

24 the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal is 

25 based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

L 

OOP33 
United States. 

Q Do you recall the conditions surrounding a late 

conveyance of property in Benavides, Texas, by way of a 

deed dated,f~pril 9, 1973? 

A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

the answer might tend to incriminate me. This refusal i 

based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

United States. 

Q In the lawsuit that I previously referred to 

Manges versus Guerra, do you recall whether or not you 

appeared as a witne~s in that hearing? 

A I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

the answer might terid' to incriminate me. This refusal i 

based on the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 

United States. 

Q I have before me a statment of evidence of 

Volume I, of that hearing. The index indicates that you 

were examined by Mr. Smith, beginning at page 51, and th• 

next examination of another witness started up by Mr. 

Smith, a witness by the name of Dennis Hendrix, starting 

at page 77. Evidence indicates on a later day you were 

examined by Mr. Smith, beginning at page 88, and the nex1 

witness H. Dennis Hendrix, was beginning at page 88 of 

approximately 10 pages. 

MR. ODAM: I would ask the court reporter 



25 

to mark and we would have made as a part of this deposi-

2 tion, those pages of testimony beginning at page 51 of 

3 your testimony. Mr. Hickman, I would ask that you mark 

4 Volume I, page 51, as a part of this deposition, which 

5 will be pages 51 to 77, and then the other testimony that 

6 I have previously referred to given by Mr. Manges. 

7 (The testimony referred to was 
marked "COM-6" for identifica-

8 tion and is attached.) 

9 Q Mr. Manges, I would ask you to look at what he 

10 has marked at page 51 as your testimony in that proceed-

II ing? 

12 A (The witness examined the exhibit.) 

13 Q And I would ask you, if you recall giving 

14 testimony in that proceeding? 

15 A I recall testifying in several proceedings. This 

16 probably was one of those cases I testified in. 

17 MR. BATES: Counsel, if it will shorten 

18 your question any, because I am getting down to a critical 

19 stage in my schedule today, we would have no objection to 

20 the pages that you have indicated as a part of that trans-

21 cript prepared by Mr. D. A. VanDresser, court reporter of 

22 the 93rd District Court being made a part of this record. 

23 MR. ODAM: All right. I take it by that 

24 that whatever statements th~t are made by __ 

25 MR. BATES: The record there will have to 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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speak for itself. 

2 MR. ODAM: All right. Fine. That will 

3 shorten the proceedings and I will have to go through th 

4 items page by page. 

5 Do you have any questions? 

6 MR. FLUSCHE: No. 

7 MR. ODAM: I have no further questions at 

8 this time, nor does Mr. flusche. 

9 MR. BATES: We.have nothing to add. 

- 10 (Whereupon at 9:45 a.m., the deposition was 

II concluded.) 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

SUSCRIBED AND SWORN to before the unde(Z~ 

author~.1/J t~~#<ay of~~· 1975, at _ 

4-~-• exas. 

19 

20 

21 W(LA V. OONZALi% 

22 

23 

24 

25 
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1 CERTIFICATE 

2 

3 TK~ STATE OF TEXAS § 
§ 

4 COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 

5 

6 I Walter H. Hickman, a Notary Public in and 

7 for Travis County, Texas, do certify that on the 22nd 

B day of October, 1975, the deposition of the witness, 

9 CLINTON MANGES, was taken before me and that the foregoing 

10 26 pages constitute a full, true and correct transcription 

11 of my Stenograph notes. 

12 GIVEN under my hand and seal of office this 24th 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

day of October, 1975. 

'-.-#::!~ ~~~~ ,_ 
ckman, Notary 

in and for Travis County, 
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THE STATE OF TEXAS 

TO ANY SHERIFF OR ANY CONSTABLE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, GREETING: 

You are hereby Commanded that you Summon.._JJ9.rAL .. 9.~. ... f.'.,_ .. C.(\J'J;".~l.lQ.r ... ~.~"-~-yJ..Q,J;_,_,~ __ . 

_..:re.x.u ..... -···--·-·······-···················-··--··-·-···-.-··········--··-··-······c·-·--·-···-···-·-··-··-··-······--··-····-
of.·-·····-·····---------·················-··-··-------.ln.:-···--Q.\lY.~.l----········-··--County, Texas, and who Is repre- " I; aented to resjde within one hundred miles of""tne·t4urthouse of ... _.Ehl.Y..al ___________________ County, Texas, •j 

in wh!ch this suit is pending or who may be found within such distance at the time of trlal, to be and I; 

•Pr.:llfcor;:~;;~~~~i\~!~~~-~o~t~~~~:~.~---""'':'~o!.':~~-~---~·;:·:=~ I] 
to be held at the County CourthouseDc .. Annex;.in .. .S.a.n . .nieg.Q fn said County } 

0
: the __ i.l~~---·· t~ 

day of .. _Q..t;.tQP.~-~-------·····• A. D. 191? __ , at...-.. .:.Q.Q .••••.. :.o•ctock.lL . ..M., then and there to teatify as a \~ 

witness, in a certain cause now pending in said Court, styled .. !.n ... ~h!! ... ~!~.~~-!'; .. 9.~.J:.~-~---J?_;.C?.C?.!'eO:~nqaj·t~ 
S!f. .. g.!!tll .... _ ..... , ~ ... \!!\!lJ!?.!.(lJ ... R'!.!!!.H!£~~.!9.!!.~ ... ~.9.!!\IE.!~.~-~-!?.!! .. B.~.,.~... ciafJm<k j 
ODtx ... , No----~~.?..!1 .. -··-·--·-·on the docket of said Court, and thaL._ . .he bring with...!l!.!L ..... -.and l1 

produce in said Court, at said time and place. the below deserlbed. .. P.9_Q.~.I!.I'_p~~-!'.~.l ... !!1c;i __ • 

c_!!!g!g!~-c::!:.~£.~'ll-·--···-···-·-········--·-··--·-----···:··-·-·······-····------------·--·······-·--·-------

dealred before the Co art in said cause. ~wit: 
All books of account, records, papers, and cancelled checks pertaining 

to his business relationship with Benavides Implement and Hardware 

Company. 

and there attend the Court from day to day, a:nd from term to term.. untu lawfully discharged, 

Iaaaed this-.1~t.~ .. fM,~········.9~!:~_!. __ , 19.?..S. .. , and at the !nstanee ofl?.1;.~~-~ ... i!.\!!!!£!~J 
0_?~;-~-~l,.C:~.~-l,~". .. 'T. .... .in !':id suit. 

Herein Fall Not. but have you then and there before said Court this writ, with ;your return thereon, 
ehowing how you have executed the same. 
.--\,I;;W!tn' :·: · ·ru · San Dieno . 17th #-Co"\ •. ··: ... .. -~~ :rn;r offl(!l eJgnature, at.._ ...................... zo ....................... -·-··-···• on this the ................ day 

:, .. ·.:··.,~_·.-of·.'O(:Itober .ADffJ75 • 

f_,_".:.·.~f<··._,····.·.··········.'.;:···.··.-.. -,···.:r_:._~;~:.i,:.J ..... :······-·········· . . -····--·····-·-·--'···-··~'····~.a..H.!!!?.~ ........................... Clerk 
• . , • _ .., CoM- 2. .... ?}.~.~~ ... :!.~~~.:.1.~~ ... !'.~.•.::::~:~ ..... -........... eourt 

""' fo1J- zr-?J ~ Duval 
, ·~~"-'Co u ~ -\ ·: .. .... ~· :· ' ~--·····-·-······· .. ·········-·················--·-··-················County 
, ''l\\, .. :-,.<,c '· 1/ .If: A,__ -Jfz. 

'SLrlke out kllhow tarthl!rith or • tpeclt'led date. By . .....-lf:t; ~·-cc,~~--~-::~---····-····-······-Deputy · 

·! 
I 

ll 

~
! . 
. 

I) 
II 
I< 

!l 
li ,. 
,I 

ll 
li 

~~ .... ._,._.,."-.,,o,..~ ..... ~•-.....,... ... ~~~-~.:::.~:---...... ~~""!'..=!m~~,. ... ~~'!."'!".z~~.:o;.r.--..... !:,.~~~;.v.·:;..· .. -;'.:~( 



IN THE MATTER OF PROCEEDING IN Ti.IE DISTRICT COURT 

OF STATE JUDICIAL § 

§ 

§ 

OF DUVAL COUNTY, TEXAS 

QUALIFICATIONS COMMISSION 

NO. 5 

229TH JUDICIAL DISTRICT 

0 R D E R 
~ 

On this ~day of October, 107S, carr.e on to be 

heard the Application For Order Compelling Appearance For 

Taki~g Of Deposition in the above ~ntitlcd and numbered 

cause and the court having considered such petition is_ of 

the view and so finds that the relief sought in such peti­

tion should be granted., it is, accordingly, 

ORDERED, ADJUDGED and DECREED that the persons named 

below residing at the addresses shown are ordered to appear 

and testify at the times designated belOw in a depo·sition 

to be taken before Walter Hickman or his designated employee, 

a d~ly qualified and serving Notary Public in and for Travis 

County, Texas, at the Courthouse Annex in San Diego, Texas, 

with directions as indicated for each such person. 

Persons Ordered to appear and testify, their addresses, 

the time for the appearance of each and the directions for 

each are as follows: 

Ill (a) Person Requested to Testify: 0. P. 
Carrillo 

(b) Address: Benavides, T"exas 

{c) Time and Date to Testify: 9:00 o'clock 
A.M., Tuesday, October 21, .1975 

(d) Directions: That a subpoena duces tecum be 
issued, compelling 0. P. Carrillo then 

12) (a) 

to produce all books of account, records, 
papers and cancelled checks pertaining to 
his business relationship with Benavides 
Implem~nt and H8rdware Company. 

Person Requested to ~estify: Clinton Manges 

(b) Address: Freer, ·Texas 

(c) Time and Date to Tes~ifY: 9:00 o'clock 
A.M., Wednesday, OctO~er 22, 1975. 



#lflH3S 
(d) Directions: That a subpoena duces tecum 

be issued, compelling Cli:1.ton Hanges to 
then produce a cancelled check, dated on 
o~ about January 27, 1971, in the sum of 
$6,915.55, payable to Riata Cadillac 
Co., San Antonio, Texas, drawn on the 
First State Bank and ~rust Co. of Rio 
Grande City, Texas. 

(J) (a) Person Requested to Testify: Ramiro Carrillo 

{b) Address: Benavides, Texas. 

(c) Time and Date to Testify: 1:30 o'clock P.M., 
.Wednesday, October 22, 1975. 

(d) Directions: That a subpoena duces tecum be 
issued, compelling Ramiro Carrillo then to 
produCe all books of account, records, 
papers and cancelled checks pertaining to 
his business relationship with Benavides 
Implement and Hardware Company. 

The Distr~ct Clerk of Duval County, Te~as is hereby 

Ordered to issue the subpoenas duces tecum necessary to 

compel the attendance of the abo~e-named witnesses at the 

times and places designated in this Order and under the 

conditions specified herein. \ 

Done and entered thisL1~ day of october, 1975. 

Judge, 229th Judicial District Court 
Duval ·county,· Texas 

-2-
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00041. 
EXHIBIT NO. 2 



. ~---··-·"' ...... ,. .. ,_ ..... :_, 
January 14, 1971 

~ 

The annual stockholders meeting of the First State Hank & Trust Compa1~y ,, 1 
Rio Grande City, Texas was called to order by CUnton Milngcs, Cba!rman of the BoarJ 
and after determining that more than two-thirds of the stock was represented in 
person or by ~r9xy, 

The following directors were present: 

Clinton Manges 
,.,. :·. M..~.J.-~..Garcia 

Frank £. Auderson 
H. ·=R.L!>Gueree.,.lll•="'"' 
O. o:H"- carrtl.lo.;un 
Max L. Jones 

Represented by proxy were: 
R. R. Guerra (W, T. Guerra) 
J, A. Garza Est. (H. P. Guerra,lll) 

The total shares represented were 810. 

. 740 
~0 
10 
10 
10 
10 

79o 

10 
_lQ 

20 

Upon motion made by Clinton Manges, seconded by Max L. Jones the following 
directors were unanimously elected: 

Clinton Manges 
M. F. Garcia 
FrankL. Anderson 
H. P. Guerra,lll 
0. p, Carrillo 
Max L. Jones 
R. R. Guerra 
Frank R. Nye, Jr. 
Dennis Hendricks 

·upon motion made by Clinton Manges, seconded by H. p, Guerra,lll and carried, 
Mr. F. L. Allderson was to contact the Banking Department and inquire how much we 
should increase our Capital Stock and it will be taken up at next month's meeting. 

There being no further business~• meeting adjourned. . 

~4~ 
SECRE ARY CHAD!MAN 

'"· 

.... ____ -----~~--. 

:'1 
"1 
! 

• 
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~ .. t 
l!) 
0 
·-:"'~ --0 

t'h'-' Annual 

oC R1o Grande City, 
11ft:(!l" d<.'t .. rmJnntJn~ 
by proxy. 

Stockholders meeting of the First bt.•' ,_, 00044 
II•H•k. 1,. It , 111 1 ,., 

Text,., was called to order ~t 3:00 P .. _ by Fr,tnk 1.. r-. 1 , 1 ,.:··.~~·.·,; 
thllt morel lhtUl 2/) of lilt' SlO(~k WIHI l'l'l'rt'NL'11lL•d 1t1 1,. 1 "";I ''I 

The Stock was represented as follows: 

Frank R. Nye~ Jr. 
Dennie Hendrix 
M. F. Garcia 
Robert G. Richmond 
9. p, Carrillo 
H. P. Guerra,lll 
F. L. Anderson 
R. Charles Richmond 
Clinton Manges 
TOTAL 

IN PERSON 

10 
10 
10 
10 
10 
10 
10 
10 

80 

BY PROXY 

_ll9_ 
730 

The Minutes of the Annual meeting held on January 14~ 1971 were read and 
upon Motion by Dennis Hendrix, seconded by M. F. Garcia, were approved as read. 

The Minutes of the Special Stockholders Meeting'were read and upon Motion 
by Brank R. Nye, Jr., ae~onded by Dennis Hendrix were approved as corrected. 

Robert G. Richmond made a Motion that Section I of the Ry-Lawa of the 
Bank be amended by increasing the number of directors from nine to thirteen. The 
Motion was seconded by Frank R. Nye, Jr. and upon vote carried. It reads as follows: 

"RESOLVED that the number of directors of the First State Bank & Trust 
Company of Rio Grande City~ Texas be increased from nine, the present 
number to thirteen, end further: 

11 RESOLVED that Section I of the By-Laws of said Bank be amended by 
substituting therein the word "Thirteen'' for the wo-rd 11Nine" and further: 

"RESOLVED that il certified copy of this resolution be transmitted to 
and filed with the State Banking Commissioner of the State of Texas" 

Upon Motion by Robert G. Richmond, seconded by Dennis Hendrix, the fallowing 
directors were elected unanimous vote of the 810 shares represented: 

Frank L. Anderson 
Robert G. Richmond 
H. P. Guerra,111 
M. F. Garcia 
Dennis"Hendrb 
Frank R, Nyej"·Jr. 
R. Charles Richmond 
Max Jones 
0. P. Carrillo 
Pedro Diaz, Jr. 
Francisco Garza 
Ramiro D.' Carrillo 
Don Manges 

Robert G. Richmond made a Motion· that Section 26 of the BY-LAWS of the Bank 
be ameridad to change the date of the regular meeting of the Board of Oirectors from 
the second Thursday to the third Thursday of each month beginning with the mcet:ing 
of the month of February. Upon second by M. F. Garcia, the Motion "'tarried. 

Mr. Carl Hamilton, Attorney at Law, stated that he was representing Mr. 
Joel Guerrero and that he understood that the book value of the stock would be reduced 
to $216.00 per share if the Capital w&s increased by a sale of 6,000 shares at $100.00 
per share. He stated that the Only way that Mr. Guerrero could keep his pres(:nt vnllu• 
was to purchase. Dennis Hendrix explained that a letter had been written to the Bankin~: 
COmmissioner and that a copy of the Reeolution authorizing the increase in Capital as 
above stated had been sent to him. He further stated tjat Robert G. Richmond later 
Visited with the Banking Commissioner in Austin and the th{! Commissioner had told him 
that it was allrlght to procee<l in accordance with the Resolution, Al ... nghthy discuf>sion 
on the propoacd increase followed, The follo-wing Motion wn.a mude by Dcnnh \lendrix und 
SllcOnded by Prank R. Nye: • 

----------------------------------------

• 
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J.mncs S. Bates, Sr. 
Clarence Mar ":LS 
H. P. Guerra·, .1-ll 
Don Manges 
Dan Manges 
Ramiro Carrillo 
Max L. Jones 
Pedro Diaz, Jr., and 
Orville Dennis 

00048 

There being no further business, upon Motion by M. F. Garcia, seconded 
by Dennis E. Hendrix, the meeting adjourned at 

~a"' ;(C'ch._/ 
4:00 P.M. (/ ·-

Jc?JL-r,,{ 
CHAIRMAN SECRETARY ' 

FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF" THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF JANUARY 18, 1973 

SEE PAGE 26. 
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(COurt was recessed until 1:15 P.t-~., 

at Which time the court convened 

and the hearing was resumed as !ol-

lows I) 

-.- 0--

· ·CLINTON MANGE~, 

Plaintiff in this cause, called aE a witness by the defendants, 

being first duly sworn, testified as follows, to-witz 

EXMIINATION BY I!R. SMITH: 

0 Would you state your name, please? 

A Clinton Manges. 

0 I believe it has been testified this morning that you are 

the majority stockholder in the First State Da."'.k. & Trur>·t 

COmpany of Rio Orande City? 

A I om. 

Q I meant to have this e~hibit identified while Mr. Richmond 

was on the stand, but ma~be you can do it. Thie is a 

statement of the condition of the b~k as of Dcccm~~r 31, 

1972, is tha.t correct? 

A I couldn 1 t tell you. I'm not a director. 

l~R. SMITlh I will all< you if you would be 

willing-to stipulate? 

MR. CIWRCH1 If :i_ou would have it matkccl first, 

• 
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we'll talk about it. 

MR. SMITH1 All right, marK it, pl¢ase. 

(The same was, by the reporter, 

marked for identification as De-

fendants• Exhibit No. 4.) 

·~ffi. SMITH: It is the same document that was 

attached to our motion e.s Appendix "A". 

MR._Cl!URC!h. \'lell, we will have ho 'objection 

.except for the necessary correction-- it ~s stated on 

here December 31, 1973, and ·it should be Decemb~r 31, 1972 • 

MR. SMITH: Thank )Ou, sir.: 
. . . 

0 While we are on the question of· the bank, Mr. Manges, I 

would like for you to give me your understanding of how 

Judge 0. P. Carrillo got on the Board of Directors of the 

First state Bank & Trust Company? 

A I asked if h~ would like to serve. 

0 Do you recall when you asked him? 

A I really don't, just when I did. 

Q To ref~esh your memory, I believe the record shows that 

he-acquired ten ~hares of stock on December 10, 1970. 

A Eo it would be prior to that. 

Q Would be juot prior to that? 

A I don't knO\rl, could be a morith or two or three difference. 

I don't remember just when. 

0 In other words, it would be within two or three monthD? 

v 
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A That's right. 

Q What was the consideration for the ten shares of stock 

you sold him? 

A A partial payment was the house in Benavides. 

Q Do you recall what the values were that were put on th~ 

house and the stock? 

A If I recall correctly, I was looking for a house in Den6 -

vides because we intended, my family and 1, to move th(·t~. 

He had a house to sell, but he didnit want to accept c~ah 

at tha.t time. I offered - - - I aeked him if he would 

like to serve on the Board, and I offered to give him 

ten shares of stock at my cost. And he wanteC:. il car, 

·and we just agreed to make the trade. As far as Collars 

and· cents; I don•t know, other than what the shares cost 

me. 

a Do you recall what yout cost was? 

A Not off-hand. 

Q Did you Know at that time what hie balance was on the 

Cadillac automobile? 

A What do you mean, what balance? 

a Well, suppOse you just teJ._l me in your own words -

A I just told you. He was going to traQe his car in for 

a new one, and he had one ordered. I just agreed th<tt 

I woul~ pay the difference over his car if t could go 

make the deal myself and save him some money. 

'- .+",..i)$4--.-,JPi'¢94£ r;<-.i.J(,._){A/MG .. ,_q.J.i# l,!J;.,IE.Sl,U. . ' . ' . . ' , . . ' ' 
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o Here is Exhibit 3, and this purpor~s to be acopy of a 

check for sixty-nine hundred and some dollars, to Riata 

cadillac COmpany. 

A Right. 

Q hben you made this trade with JUd ge Carrillo, did you 

- - what was the discussion concerning this Cadillac? 

A 1 juat told you. I ,.,uld pay the difference. 

Q Did you discuss how much the aifference was? 

A Whatever I could work out on it~ If I could make the 

trade, ·I could save more. 

·' 
Q You thought you could make a better deal with it than he 

could? :; .": .. \.• 

A Yes~ 1 don't know if he was trying to trade his at the 

time or not. I think it was in Alice, but he delivered 

it to Riata. 

Q An~ you handled that trade? 

A Sure did. 

Q Was that sixty-nine hundred the list p_rice? 

A No, sir, the difference~ 

o What sort of horse trade did you make? 

A ~6945 .00. 

Q ~~at was the list? 

A I don't know. 

Q to you know ho\1 much rr.ore it was than that? 

A I don't have any idea • 
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A Yee, sir. 

Q On the ranch? 

A No, sir~ 

Q Now, at the time ~ou asked Judge Carrillo to eerve on 

the Board of Directors of the bank, ~ou knew he was to 

be the Judge who would Preside in this case, did you not? 

A I· really didn't take it into consideration, wasn't even 

thinking of that point at that time • 

Q Now, When you sought to have the R€ceiver, Mr. Bates, 

made a director of the Groos National Bank in San Antonio, 

did you -

MR. CHURCH: Please the Court, we are going 

to object to any testimony or any inquiry about tranr:.:ac-

tions with the Groos Natio'nal Bank becauoe it is outside 

the soope of this law suit and has nothing to do with 

Judge Carrillo's qualification or disqualification, and 

the inquiry is made purely out of curiosity and is not 

releva..'l.t or material here. \'Je object to any inquir:y into 

that transaction unless he can show it had any connection 

with Judge Carrillo's alle~~d dis:qualific_ation. 

THE COU:RT 1 Wha-:. connection is there? 

MB •. SMITH: Our position ie that the plaintiff 

here has made an effort to confer favors on every officer 

of thie Court who had-anything to do with decision making 

and 1t is .material in light of the fact that the Judge and 

_-$.@.::pt.!( ~,i4[@1. )¢{ •. i., i. JW:f£#.f.J!9.i\i#~ .4Aii.M).JJI . .l\.. :JhltJ.fb .. ·l?+.JG..PC 
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all these officers accepted the favors. This fact makes 

It material to the w~le procedure this litigant Is using 

to try to pervert justice In this Court. 

MR. CHURCH: Now we object to that statement. 

Your Honor, he has filed a motion saying that Judge 

Carrillo was disqualified, not anybody else. He didn't 

say the receiver 1s disqualified, he didn't say that the 

attorneys are disqualified. The whole purpose of his 

·motion and of this hearing Is that Judge Carrillo Is 

disqualified. Yet he comes in now and makes the state­

ment to the Court that he can show that the officers of 

the Court, or the receiver had received some other favors, 

and that has nothing to do with whether or not Judge 

Carrillo Is disqualified. 

THE COURT: I'll sustain the objection. 

MR. SMITH: Well, all right, but I want to 

put It In the record under a bill of exceptions. 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. CHURCH: ~/ell, I don't know what his In-

qulry w111 be, but the record shows our objection to the 

Inquiry relating to the Groos National Bank, and our ob­

jection Is In the record, and the Court'S ruling. That 

Is clear.· And the ruling of the Court 1 s clear. We would 

object to any further Interrogation of this witness on 

that. 
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THE COURT: I can't see. the .materiality of 

1t too much. The remoteness of it Is the - - - but I 

can see why you· might try to shoW an underlying sche~e. 

MR. SMITH: Of which the Judge of the Court 

Is a part. 

THE COURT: well, I don't think you can at­

tribute everything to the Court. 

MR. SMITH: The Court has to approve the ap­

.pllcat1ons of the receiver, and has done so • 

THE COURT: Well, 1'11 still overrule and ob­

jection - - - I mean sustain the objection. 

MR. SMITH: Well, then w~ will put It In under 

a bill. 

Q You may now answer the question under our bill, Mr. Manges. 

MR. CHURCH: No, we object to him answering 

any question as to the Groos National Bank 1 because it•s 

not material or relevant under all the rules and statutes, 

and the Court has sustained the objection. 

MR. SMITH: The right, your Honor, to put In 

a bill of exceptions is fundamental and absolute, so that 

the appellate Court gets a chance to rule on 1t. The 

·trial Court Is Without power to stop that. 

THE COURT: Okay, go ahead. 

MR. SMITH:· Your Honor, 1 don't think the bill 

1s going to take any particular time.· We want to subml t 

'i 
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to'the witness here the material that was attached as 

Appendix "C" to our motion, ard ask him If he authorized 

these -well, part of them are signed by him, but we 

would ask If he authorized this, and lfre executed these 

and If this Is action he took. That Is very simple, and 

It will take only a minute. 

HR, CHURCH: I understand how simple It Is, 

but our objection goes to testimony referring to the 

Groos National Bank, which he. raises not to show Judge 

Carrillo's disqualification, but to ask Hr. Manges about 

his personal Business outside the scope of this case. 

· THE COURT: What Is It you are got ng to ask 

him, counsel? 

HR. SMITH: I will just let the Court see 

these documents I propose to ask him about, just for 

the Information of the Court • 

(The same were handed to the Court.) 

THE COURT: Well, I will allow It to be put In 

on the bill of exceptions, but I don't see the materiality 

of It to this case. 

HR. CHURCH: Please the Court, Mr. Smith's 

theory Is thfs -- If, say on a deposition, Hr. Manges 

were asked-the same question' and he refused to answer 

It, and It' came before the Court as to whether or not he 

was In contempt, the Court passing on the question wou)d 

u.,.pe x.;;: M_, z.e; ;::, .. 1411 .-! 51. s ZE,.JA .!ft. .P.IJ $._&!AI $S#. ~ .•. 4.41__$ . .. ~ 
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find that it was not material or relevant. Mr. Smith's 

idea is that even though it is not material and not rel~-

vant, he can still make the witness answer the question. 

That is what he is asking now on his bill. I sa~ under 

the rules I brought the matter to the attention of the 

Court, and the Court has sustained my objection, and that 

is all in the record and will go up on this record here 

as to Whether or not the Court's ruling wae correct • 

·That is wh~ we object to him asking him a question on 

what he calls a bill of ecception to obtain from this 

~tnese evidence that is not relevant or material, just 

to satisfy his curiosity. 

MR. SMITH a Your Honor, this is not a matter 

of curiosity. Well, anyway the Court has ruled, and \"'O 

are submitting it under a bill of ex.ception. I think 

that•e all there is to it. The appellate courts can de-

cide bet'llleen Mr. Church an:i myself who is right. We have 

plead and we eay that when a litigant comes into court 

and tries to give to the Judge favors and gifts of the 

'sort ecw.onstrated by this evidence, not only directly 

but through every officer of the Cour_t, that iS rclev~nt • 

He says it isn·•t, I say it is. And I think the appellate 

court will sa~ it is. 'l'he litigant can•t come in and 

smother the officer3 of the COurt with favors and the 

Court just sit by and watch it. This ia so flagrant it· 
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has to be brought out on the Judge's qualification. 

THE COURT• Well, I will let you attach those 

to your bill of exceptions merely for the purpose of show-

ing what ~ou would attempt to show, but that is the only 

purpose. 

MR. SMITH; All right, ~.Reporter, you may 

attach thBe as Bill of Exceptions Exhibit No. 1. For 

· identification, these are the papere I attached as Exhibit 

·•c• to the motion for disqualification • 

(The same were so marked, ana are 

herein contained at the appendix 

·of exhibits.) 

MR. SMITfh And we do want to ask the witnefes 

one· or two questions about the documents4 

MR. CHURCH 1 And we. W":l u_l~ renew our objection 

again, because the Court has ruled'that it is irrelevant 

and immaterial, and t~e only purpose of additional ques­

tio-ns is just his curiosity .and not for the purpo.;:.:c of 

evidence on his bill. He has the documents in -- the 

Court allowed that. And now we object to any further 

interrogation. The record~hows what the matter pert~ed 

to, shows my objection, and shows the Court's ruling. 

Therefore we again object to him asking any further quea-

tions .. 

MR. SMITH, I want to ask the witness if he 

,,;:q_,.;.p 9!4 s_q,_; J514f. q $ _ ,- .. _, ... .:; J...J .hAP§ ___ ,; +I 
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signed theae three documents, :iO~r:aonor. 

MR. CHURClh I think the}' speak. for themselve:~ • 

They show whether he aid or not. 

MR. SMI"l'll: Well, I want to asl< him it he of-

fixed his signature on them. 

THE COURT: In order to prove it up, I will 

let you ask that question. 

MR. CHURCH 1 Note our exception even to th ;:..t • 

Q Did you, Mr. Manges? 

A . Aa far as I know 1 did. 

Q As far· as you know you did? 

A Yes, that's right. 

Q At the time you sought to have Mr. sates appointed as a 

director of that bank you knew, did you not, that he was 

the Receiver of M. Guerra & Son in this case? 

MR. CHURClh _Ue object again to the interroga-

tion of this witness regarding this matter which ie not 

relevant or material to the disqualification of Judge 

Carrillo. l 
THE COURT1 Sustain the objection. 

MR. SMlTHa ~e would like him to answer under 

the bill of exceptions. 

THE COURTa 1 am going to refuse that. We ~re 

getting too far astray here. 

MR. S~THa Note our e~ception, please. 
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MR. SMITHa Now, your Honor, we are going to 

have some questions on this matter of ur. Manges load-

1ng the Board of Directors of this ban>: here in !<io 

Grande City with officers of this court. 

MR. CHURCH• We object to the reference to 

•1oading 11 the board. If he wants to say elected, all 

right, but I don't think he.should characterize it as 

loading • 

MR. SMITH• I will be glad to accommodate Mr. 

Church, your Honor. 

THE OOURTt Re-phrase your question. 

Q Mr. Manges, I believe Mr. Nye testified this morning that 

you had discussed with him his election to th~ board. 

A I don't recall just when. I probably did. 

Q. Did you have any particular reason for wanting Mr. Nye on 

the board? 

A Sure did . He is well known in this community, and we \-.'ere 

trying to get all the politics out of the bank, have both 

sides in there. 

Q At the time you talked to him about it, you did knmr, I 

believe, that he was a special attorney for the Receiver 

in this case? 

A That had nothing to ao with it. I just wanted sameboay 

to represent the bank who was. well known over here. 

Q That had nothing _to do with it? 
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A Absolutel~ not. 

0 I believe Mr. Dennis Hendrix has been on the board? 

A 'Yes, sir. 

0 Did you have an~ special reason for wanting him? 

A Sure did, he is well qualified to serve on the Board of 

Directors. . )" 

0 Where does he live, dO you know?· 

A In Edinburg • 

Q You knew at the time you asked him to serve that he ~1as 

the attorney for the Receiver in this case, did you not? 

A Sure did. 

Q And Bamiro Carrillo, who has been appointed on the boaraj 

I believe you have heard the testimony that he is the 

brothe.r of Judge Carrillo? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Did you discuss his appointment to the Board with him, 

with Remiro? 

A No, sir. 

Q Well, as owner of the majority - - -

A Hr ~ Richmond had the prox~ on it. I didn't discuss it 

with him, though. .. 
Q You gave ~our prox~ to Mr. Richmond? 

A Yes. 

Q Ie there any reason why ~ou a;re not serving on the Board? 

A Yes, eir. 
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Q Wh)' not? 

A The Comptroller of currency asked me not to until we got 

this straightened out whether or not I was qualified to 

serve. 

Q You generall~ discuss the matter with people who are 

prospects for the Board? 

A Very seldom. I really don't. I let Mr. Richmond run 

the bank there . 

Q Would you care to state what the problem is with the Camp-

troller of currency? 

MR. CHURCHa I don't think that has any bearing 

whatsoever on whether or not Judge Carrillo is qualified. 

THE COURTa I don't think so. 

MR. CHURCHo And I object to it. 

Q- I believe Senator Bates, the Receiver, was elected ~o the 

Board thisJanuary. Did you discuss that with Senator Bates? 

A Sure didn't. 

0 Do )IOU have any particular reason why you wanted Mr. - - -

A I didn 1 t say I had diecussed it with him. 1 said I did not. 

Q I believe the minutes read here, concerning the election 

in Januar~ of 1971, reflect that you made the matiun for 

the election of Judge Carrillo and the others who were 

elected then? 

A Probably did. I don•t recall. Whatever the minutes said. 

THE COURT• What .~ate waa that? 

.:. ;uq f4l.S, .. Ojt;; s . ea ,:. p$ .. :;ti¥.4A.-.a 1 .. ,.: A 
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Ma. SMITHs In 1971, January. 

A Whatever the minutes reflect. 

Q Now, back. to this house and the bank stock. You have 

been in the real estate business for some time, have you 

not? 

A Sure have. 

Q When did you first go into the real estate business? 

A I don't recall . 

Q What is your present age? 

A Forty-eight. 

Q And how many years would you say you have been - - -

A ·I don't recall. 

Q Wbuld it be as much as ten years? 

A COuld be. ·:-· 

Q Could it be more than ten years? 

A COuld be. 
,. 

Q Well, is it? 

A I couldn't tell you off-hand. I don't remember when I 

got my first license. 

Q Do you have a license at this time? 

A I think so. I don't recall if I- have kept them in~effect 

or not. 

Q But you have dealt with real estate? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Buying and selling both? 

$f!,.,l¢ .. 1 ¥4-¥.11 $fyP .... Wif.H.I AW.Fi¥;9# . .... l4lf_.t!.t,J}Y44}2 .~,,:. q;:;,z:c_,t l.P.f¥¥.&. #.!!Uii.$Mlll PP. ,~ s.e.;a9.<''"" 4 
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As a matter of fact you probably bought and sold mora 

than where you acted as an agent? 

% wouldn 1 t attempt to decide that now. I would have to 

check each trade I ever made. 

NC7i/, I believe you own ranch property in Duval Count}•? 

own a corporation that owns some property up there. 

When did ~ou acquire that ranch? 
';' 

I don•t recall exactly. . ; •. 

Could you tell me - - - COUld YOU gi.;e us·- an· idea ha-.o1 D.1..'lj 

years ago? 

A Within. the last three or four years. 

Q Do ~ou recall what ~ou paid for the property? 

Q Have you dealt in real estate enough in DUval County anj 

St~r County to know the value of ranch lands there? 

A I have my own opinion. 

Q You are able to form an upinion about value? 

A I ~ave my own ideas about value. 

Have you formed any opinion about the value of the l~"~~~ 

yo.u actually purchased? 

A I had a pretty good opinion, or I wouldn't have bought it. 

Q How ~ut t.he residence property, that has the houso oa 

it in Ben~vidcs? 

A What do you mean? 

-.t 
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Q What is the value of that? 

A I ~n't know off-hand. I would have to have it appraised • 

1 know very little about houses. 

Q Tho value of the sixty-nine hundred dollars plus tan ~hares 

of stock, is that right? 

A That's what I gave !or it. 

Q . What value did you put on the 

A Ten shares of stock and the difference on the cax • 

Q What value did you put on the bank stack at that time? 

A Cost. 

Q What was y our coot? 

A 1 ~n•t recall. 

Q Wbuld the bank records show? 

A I'm· sure they would. I don't have any idea off-hand. 

Q . Did you have the house in Benavides appraised? 

A No, sir • 

Q The truth of the matter iG, Mr. Manges, you were more 

interested in buying a house from Judge Carrillo than 

·you were in getting a place to live, isn't that right? 

A Certainly not. I wanted a house. 

Q But you haven•t moved in itQ 

A I intended to. 

Q And you don 1 t know what it cost? 

A It was· ~rth ten shares of stock and the difference on 

the car when I bo,ught it. 

··,, .. 
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Q But you don •t know what the stock was worth? 

A Cost • 

Q But what was it ·worth? 

A I don 1 t know. 'l'hat • s three or four years ago now. I 

~n•t keep that in mind constantly. And according to 

you I. deal all over the country. 

Q But :you know what yoU paid f.or the bank stock, don • t ;you? 

A I don't have any idea. I am sure my records shJw that . 

Q The bank records wouldn't? 

A Not necessarily. I don't know. 

0 Well, unless l can get the information from you, I \:touldn • t 

know where to get it. 

~ I wouldn't either. 

Q And I think it is important on this pa.:ticular 

A Mr.· Church con probably get the cost of it for you. I 

just don't recall now. .... • < 
... 'I 

Q Did Mr. Church handle the purchase of the ban]( stock for 

you? 

A I don 1 t remember how that was· handled,. Mr. Smith. There 

were two or three different purchases, and ! don't rem~~-

b~r how they were handled •.. 

Q At the time you bought the house in Benavides, didyou ge~ 

a guaranteed title polic~? 

~ I clon't "know. Mr. Hendrix can tell you -he handled it. 

Q He hae your authority to let us eee the guar~nteed title 

i.un . 1'L(4!$. k p _:...p.c.ua ', .. .J _ 11.4 t ZJL _X$1.£,344.fA. t;f. R,.i ... @!., ;: _l.E&tJ-'~- . .l.*ASP:!j!(§! 1 ,tll91.+'.4, 
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policy, if there is one? 

A As far as I know. He can giya you information on the 

houGe. 

Q Uow, going to the lease with Judge Carrillo. Do !iOU have 

a copy of that lease? 

A I don ~ t know if one was ever drawn up or not. !·1r • Hendrix 

handled that too. · 

0 Do you recall whether it was oral or written? 

A We discussed it with Mr. Hendrix and asked him to dra,·/ it 

up. 

0 Do you recall if you signed one? 

A 1 don't think I did •. I eon't recall signing one. 

Q . Who initiated the negotiations about the lease, you or· 

Judge Carrillo? 

A. As I recall at the time, Mr. Smith, I ran into Judge 

Carrillo here in Rio Grande City, end he asked if I "'as 

grazing the property I bought. I said no, that I intended 

to clear it all and put it in permanent grass. He said he 

bad cattle up there, a."'l.d it was very dr:y and he wanted to 

lee~se soma of it for them. 

Q Did you make a short-term lease at that time? 

A I think on one tract of about fourteen hundred acres, I 

let him have it for tv.u or t;.hree weeks. Then I had a 

Qhancc to Bell that, and I we0t and told him. Re enid 

he was in a bind with the ca~tle, because it was so cry 

--.... :, ;. PPP.«.t.;QJP@f.%4 I 
'··"' .4 '• 
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ap there. So I said I had five or. six hundred~rc~ ~# 

' 
on what they call the Jackass Flat country that I co~l~ 

lease him. I mean five or aix thousand. 

on that first lee.ae, -what did you charge him for th(";l ll.: ·.t •·, 

A 1 think for that I just let him use it ae a courtesy, 1 

don't recall. 

Q Did he accept your. proposition on the larger tract at :1v, 

thousand acres? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q And is that what you rr.ade your lease arrangement on? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Am I correct that it was a lease for three years? 

A Yea, sir 1 three years, or w'hen I got to the point of d. e.,r• 

ing it . 

Q And how much acreage? 

A Fi~e or six thousand acres,as I estimat.e it. 

Q And what was the oonsideration1 Was it per acre? 

A Yes, sir, as I remember it. was. Mr. Uendrix will have 

that. we discussed it in his office. 

Q BOw was the rent payable? 

A z .. 1could teke it in monel! when I ·go~ the land cleart!d --

in cattle or in mo~y. 

Q What \'las the date of the beginning of that three-yc.:1.r 

period? ' ' 

A I don't recall. Mr. Hendrix will have thot. 

·'*4:#::· .-.!f.M&J1ji@t .... AZAJ¢.--. . tql.it t.Qp¢QE ££_Jtt¥A_.. ;;t#p$S:) au .. ·"-·:· 
-, 

... ~. 
···~- .,. 

} 

i 
I 



73 

:a Q And the term wu1d, of course, .would be three years after 

• A 

the beginning date? 

Or sooner if I needed it for clearing. 

Q You have a condition in there 

A If I needed itr he would give possession. 

Q On tequeet? 

A on request. That Was the understanding _with him. l don't 

know if it was put in the memorandum or not • 

• Q And I believe ~ou said he would pa~ you in money or in • cattle? :·-·, 

A Yes. 

Q What arrangement did :yoU make about appraising the value 

of the cattle? 

A x·~- sure it woul d be market value. It wasn't discussed. 

Whatever they would bring at the time. 

• Q Who would select the ca~tle? ~bUld you select them, or 

would he cull them out? 

A 'rhat point I wasn't concerned al::lout at thet.ime. Wa could 

settle that when the tirne came. 

Q What was the dollars and cents value, say per month, or 

per ~ear •• 

•• A Mx. Hendrix will have the terms on that memorandum. 

Q You don't have any recollection of it at all? 

A I think it was a dollar an ac~e per ~ear, I'm not sure. 

That was two or three years ~go. 

:e.Jt.##.P~ e. 
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0 But that is the best of your r~col~ection? 

A Yes, air • ~ ... 

0 You didn't have ·any kind of arrangement whereby if you 

had any disagreement as to the cattle -

A Oh, that's nit-picking. I wuld hate to have that kind 

of agreement. 

0 .In other words, you didn't have wny of those things in 

the agreement? 

A No. 

Q No agreement of any kind in the lease as to how you would 

chooee·the cattle, if you took cattle as a consideration 

for the lease? 

A No. 

0 Have you made any other leases of any ranch lands w.1. th 

any ~ther parties? 

A Yee, sir. 

0 Any in Starr county? 

A Yes, sir. 

0 Who were some of those made to? 

A One man, I think, is Garza. ·I don't remember exactly. 

I· think he was a Collar an ~ere, a:.1d I think possibly it 

could have been written, I don't remember exactly. Some 

man was leasing it at the time, and I let him stay on. 

0 In otlu;~r """rds, he was an exis:Ung tenant? 

A Yes. And then a guy nam~d Steve, ! let him have some. 

· ... ~ .. 

~ 
I 
l 
! 
; 
; 

I 
i. 
I! 
I! 



j 
! 
; 
i 
j 
I 

! 
j 
l 
I 

• • 

• 
• 

• 

00076 

Q A new tenant? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q What were the terms with him? 

A I don • t remember exactly the details. I would move l-~:t 

out when I got to clearing also. 

Q That. same condition? 

A Yes, sir. 

0 Were there any other leaaes? 

_A Yes, I think one or two more verbal deals. I- think a 

Mr. Gonzalez, he had some cattle on there. 

Q What were the terms of his lease? 

A I t.hinl< the same way - when I wanted t.o clear it., ho 

would give possession. 

Q Would that be written? 

A· No, sir. 

Q Wo~ld Mr. Hendrix have that? 

A No, sir. 

Q You made that direct? 

A No, sir, my brother did, up at Freer. 

Q That. would be - - -

A Don. 

Q He is the one named Don, and there is one named Dan? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Which was the oldest brother? 

A Dan. 

!...' 
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Which one is a director of the banl<? 

Both of them are now. 

76 

COuld ~au give .us a description of approximately where 

this lease is to JUdge Carrillo, this five or six thou-

sand acres? 

A All I l<now it by is Jaol<ass Flats. Mr. Hendrix will have 

the description. 

Q .'Where 1e it located? 

A WOuld be northwest of Rio Grande ~ity. 

''· 
Q About how many miles? 

A I imagine twelve~ fourteen, fifteen miles. 1 don't know 

exactly. ·"'•' 

Q Does Judge Carrillo have any adjoining land? 

A I couldn't tell.you. 

A 

MR. SMITHJ Your Honor, I believe that's all. 

But I think we would like, while Mr. Richmond is here, to 

·see if he knows what the value of that bank stock is. 

MR. CHURCH1 You don't have any rno:re questions 

of Mr .. Manges? 

MR. SMITH 1 lll'o, we pass the witness. 

~ don't know whether - Mr. Smith, I thinl< we will have 

. to get that from my accountant. I truthfully Cb n' t re-

member. 

MR. SMITlh Mr. Richmond, do you know? 

MR. RICHMOND; I don't know, no, sir. 

(Wi tneaa oxcused.) 

vfp 
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not exbt. I realize he is asl<ing the court to toke judi-

c!al. knowledge of facts, but these are facts which do not 

• 
exist. Mr. Hendrix handled tha receiver$hi? after JanL1ar~ 

1, 1971. As I understand it, when they report the sale 

originally, that recites the sales price. But ~s. M~nges 

had advanced funds on behalf of the partnerehip, an~ as I 

understand it that report· shows there \fasn•t anything due 

by Mr. Manges at the ti~e he got the deed •. But what he 

is saying is entirely different. He recit€o a fact which 

does not e:Mist. That • s what I complain about. ·He is mak-

ing up the facts, and wants the Court to tal<e judicial 

notice of them. 

MR. SMITH a ~'le don •t have any objection to put-

ting in thore the pleading that shows that. It 1 s about 

half an inch thicl<. All we want to show iro:o it is that 

he.didn 1 t pay for it V~hen he got it • 

MR. CHURCH! But it shows in the report that he 

paid all these other ite:ns. He says he dien 't pay ony-

thing. No, he paid it before, maybe a ~eur before. But 

he' doeen•t want to tell the Court t:lxactly what is correct. 

MR. SMITH: I have told the Court he a~numed 

Partnership obligations and that he still owes a balance, 

and I take that inform&tion "from the report of the Receiver. 

MR. CHIJRC!h He tells the COurt th~t Hanges ?aid 

nothing, and now he sayo he "assumed. 11 And there \/ilan•t 

I_ Q..(P$.1,,.1., .. I .A4U)Q.f- .. #(illf. 1 .! -d!%¥. 4-.J.P 14; .x.twow;.: t.(JQ#M t. ;t$t;:_WI$JWit lf#PA.ll!""l. 
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anything due for two years, li~e h~ sa:ts• 

MR. SMITH• Well, we will offer the pleading 

in evidence, if the Court wants it. 

'!'HE Ca.JR'l': I expect you had bettm·. 

MR. ~II'l'IH All right, we will offer the final 

report - - ""' 

MR. CHURCih You are talking ab:lut getting the 

Court to take judicial knowledge things in January, l97l. 

That's the report ~ou want in evidence. That's tho on~ 

you -

MR. SMITH: ~nat we are offering is the .final 

report of the Receiver, showing Manges still· owes same 

~94,000 .oo. 

MR. CHtmC!ll We will •tipulate that he owed, 

or ~teE, $94,000.00, but it dian"t corns from the purchase 

prico - -

MR. SMITH: Of course tha land is thC only thing 

he purchased. We will offer a COPL of that report ns a 

Court exhibit. 

Now No. 10. "Althoug~'l Judge Carrillo on .Harch 17, 

1971 ~igncd an order authorizing and directing the Receiver 

to sell real estate and oonve~ partnership lands in partial 

distribution and diesolution of M. Guerra & Eon, specify-

ing th~t the conveyance of cer.tain landn to Uefendc.nt R. ~. 

Guorra 1 be made free nnd clear of ~1 liens and encumbrances 

against sa.-ne, i R. R. Guerra was delayed until AuwH:t 20, ·---- ..,...., :zc*_,_,.: Yi'tiK-~ifi"tJ <~ .p;s >. 4. H 45)~;;. n: ~ ... z;:.; -GMdMt·s.¥ ilt¢4¢1. £¥k s;;t.Wf!k ;;•to .. IAJR•~q :;»#tf!¥ .. r" ,, 
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138 •1971 and required to raiEe the cas~ difference to pay 

. the Receiver the full purchase price in caEh (over and 

above allowances due R. R. Gue:ra from the partnership.) 11 

Now .this, :tour Honor t is erie of the things tV"e complaj,n of 

in not having a fair and impartial Judge. Manges did not 

hllve to come up with the $94,000.00 to get his. But thei 

sweated R. R. Guerra far six months, and then made him 

turn up with the money • 11e will show the amount he had 

to rsiee after that delay to get his land. Th"t' s in the 

record. 

MR.· CHURCH• The recora will speak for itself 

just. fine. Now, he says Mr. Guerra ~as delaj:1ed. lie has 

had possession of his acreage since 1968, before we aver 

filed this suit. He has had it in his posseeeion from the • '!/ ery beginning. The Receiver never stepped fcot on his 

• acrea9e, and yet he s~j:s the Judge was partial by giving 

a deed to Manges and \'o0Uln 1 d give one to thi£i man at the 

same time. 

MR. SMIT"dt: I sa:y he wa:; not impartial because 

h& made the requirement of the parties, yes, and thon after 

all parties agreed they WOl\,,d let Hangee have his, tt.cn 

Mangea welched ·and \iOUldn 1 t agroo they get theirs. They 

sweated them for six months nore. 

MR. CHURCH; I think the record \';ill e-ho'.'.• v!Joat 

happened. First he says Manges did pay £omething, an~ 

.... · · .. ,. 
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then he says he didn't. Mr. Mange.s paid his money ·aut 

before they. ever got to this deed. These people Cl.i.On •t 

pay anything before they got their deEds, I think the 

Recei'Ver•s report will shOW" the :ro asons for the Celal'• 

THE COURTs Well, I'll look the report over. 

MB. SMITHs ~our Honor, every ana of thane 

partners who withdrc..'\'1 land assumed certain partnt!:rship 

debts.,. and got credit - M.:mgee did, R. R. Guerra did, 

H. P. Guerra, and I thin1: Virgil Guerra also. The Re-

ceiver 1 s report will sho\-1 that. 

THE OOUR'l'a The court can take judicial notice 

of pap~s in the case, what the reports show -

l just 

. didn 1 t want to be in the attitude of agreeing to what r-1r. 

Smith says are facts, and are not facts. 

MR. SlU'nh Well, I will stay here until I. get 

every paper that will prove these things. lf there is ~~y 

Ooubt inthe Judge• s mind, we \'Jill stay -

'l'HE COURTt l>'lell, there is no uoe to put them 

in·evidence. If they are filed, they are a record in the 

case, and the Court will take judicial notice ·of them • 

MR.·CHURCHI If they exist in the record, and 

not as Mr. Snith Gayo. That's all I ~sk. 

T!IE COURTa t~1e1l, it will be Up to me to look 

them over • 

. ' 

:J 
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"3. That the gOvernment of Starr County is 

now and has been for ~ore than ~ decade, controlled b~ 

a political machine." 

THE COURT: Well, I don•t believe I can ta~e 

judicial knowledge uf that. 

MR. CHURCH• -And we would object to 3, 4 a."ld 5 

of that section, becauE:e they are not matters of Ct'~mmon 

knowledge. They are not fact& 

THE OOUR'I': Well, let me :z:-ead them for myself 

and sea \</hat. they are. 

MR. ClitJRCU: Well, it•a just a srnear agai:rlst 

Starr count~. 

(SUch motion \·las handed to and read 

the court.) 

MR, SMI'flh I think thef;e are matters of cor::tt~on 

knowledge. EVetj:body who is in a law suit here knO\..,.fi it, 

everybody on tha streets in this tmm kn.owe it, and Dill 

Church knows. 

MR. CliURCHJ I will plead ignorance. I don 1 t 

know it. 

Tim OOURT 1 ~'lell, I will have to overruls :you 

on cormnon kno\"tletige of 3, 4 and 5. 

MR. SMITHs ~lote our exception, ;your l-:Onor. 

I think it is known by evor~hcdy in the nio Gronde valley, 

known to the a.ppelate Courts, I knoo'l it, la\eyers know it, 

:ppt. 4,(4 

' 
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Aunt Susie knows it, and I think the Court judicially 

knCl4s it, and we take our exception. 

THE COURT a I don't kn0\-1 it, myself. 

MR. SMI'Ilh NO\t there is one other qUestion 

that is up in a cloud here, and we ~ay have to call Mr. 

Manges on it. Maybe he can give us a few answers. 

THE COURTt All right, put him on. 

-- 0 - -

CLUlTON MJ>N GES, 

Plaintiff herein, called as a witness by the defendants, being 

previously s\..-om, testified as follows: 

EXAMINATion BY rm. sMIT!-I: 

Q You were here this morning and heard ~~. Andervon•s testi-

mon~?. 

A Yes, sir. 

0 Excuse me, you are Clinton Manges, the plaintiff in tlll.s 

case? 

A Th'lt 1 n right. 

0 And you have been previously sworn in this cace? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q When that incrcace in the capital structure of the bank 

came about in February, I believe, of 1972 - - - is that 

, IAAQ!$0{ A- JJt ;q . ;hYWdG(\ pi. ,J!!J. IS ,!f4.t;ffir4· ~ 4,$ ;aa;:._t_ .. 
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when they increased the capital? 

A Whatever the date was. I don't recall. 

Q All right, whatever he stAtE:d. The nur.iber of Dh~rcs was 

increased from one thousand to seven thousand &hares,. is 

that right? 

A I think that's right, 

Q Frankly, here is what I want to clear up, and maybe you 

can answer it. Mr. McKinneY and I had a different inter-

A 

Q 

~e1;.aUon of what Mr. Anderson said. Ne didn • t know whe-

ther he testified that ~ou had a seven to one stock split 

without adding any additional capital to the bank, or Yihe­

you jUst sold six·thousand new sharee at a hundred dollurs 

a share? 

I'll Clear it up. The Banking Cow.mission wa11ted us to in-

crease the capital over there, is what I understand they 

said. At the stoCkholders rneating everyone agreed to in-

crease the cash capital. They voted to incre~~e the cash 

capital, and everyone ''~ held stock could have sb• addi-

tional shares for it if they wanted to exercise their op-

tion. Only t\10 or three did exercise their optiou. If 

they didn 1 t buy it, the other stockholderG hcd a r~ght. 

There "'ere quite a few of them wh::t avsi91 ed their option::~ 

to you, according to hie teatimon~, and from \·1hat you h~vc 

said, when those stockhold~ro decided r.1ot to exerci::c t!lcir 

option ana released their option to you,· you \oJould be ob-

/ 
3> 
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ligated to pay an additional hcndred dollars for each 

share you took under those options? 

A That's right. And I diCn't have to take it, and if I 

didn't, <;llll'One else had a right to. 

Q But on tho ones yoo did take, diCl you put up an additio:1.al 

hundred dollars for each option share? 

A As far as I know I did. I think it wa.a a hundred dollart:> 

for tho increased cash capital • 

• Q \'las there any objection to that from p~ople who 0\;Jncd the 

0 original shares a.nd \'iho did r:ot exercise tho option? 

A I don't know \.,..hether there \-las any objection or not.. 

Q Were you at the B:>ard meeting ·v~here this matter wa5 d.c..:c:idcd? 

A No, I \'Fasn 1t. This vas <\t the request of the Banking Com-

missioner. 

e) Q I undcrsta.fld. We just Oid."l 't understwd how thin \'las done. 

e Do you recall how much total cas'h you put up for the op-

tions you bought? 

A No, sir, sure don't. I don't krnvr how many shares I l:ought. 

Q can you give us an approximation 7 

A No, sir, I \'iOUldn't atte..Liyt. to. 

···~· 

Q I b.::llieve the records indi~t.te }IOU no...,, mm sorn~thing li}~c 

f) fiftl'-f:ix hundred md sor:.tc shares, something like that? 

A ~lhatcvcr the record d!O'•IS. 

Q For C4l.Ch of those shares :you nmJ own, you WO!..ll<l h.:o.vo pl~t 

up a hundred dollars a :z:h.)re, except for the rqugl".:.l)l one-

·-- --,-4 f.M ¥if;.!JL?1fh.l t)X~ I. , 14, .4' .. f"' • .0.41 4C f\41 - b )_AUI-)_2, ,,o , ::W ,:; '*f, 2 !4 0¥.1¥5>1. •. 4 tt, :<1~ 
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eeve.nth, is that right? 

A As far afl I know, that "'as the price. 

Q Tho woy I figured it ot:t, if you o·.·mcd 560 r.h.:u.-cs, th2-t 

would lL'lVc run roughly ubout $360, CJ:JO. 00. !.bet; th.ut re:­

frc(:h your memory? 

A No. 

Q You don't have any idea? 

A No, sir. 

0 Nou, Judge Carrillo teE:tificd, and ymJ didn't sccrn to rQ­

membcr, that he con~idcrerJ the vclue of the 10 churcs he 

bought <Jt the time he made that lot tru.'lsactiort with l'OU, 

as being $7-13.00 a :ohar.::. Doell that rcfrc:::h }'OUr :r.cmory7 

A Wh~tcv~r price I pnid. I don't know. 

Q Would you sa") that was close to the bnok value <-1.t thc...-t time? 

A I O.on 't have any idcu. wh.~.1.~ it was. 

Q You \I.UUldn 't have any re.uson to believe Judge curr.illo \v·~·,s 

giving ony false informatio::.i? 

A None \-,h u.tsoevcr. 

Q There wus nothing ubout thu.t fic;uro that .fihocJ~~ ;you u::; b"'­

ing out of line? 

A I'm not shocked .:.t. o.nything. 

Q That figure is in the ball park, }'OU vmuld suy? 

A CrJUld be, n:; far aa I know. I don 1 t h.:~.vc w:ny ide.::.. 

MR. SMITHs i,1ell, I believe that 1 s .-~11, :your 

H:mor. 
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MR. Ch'URClh I have no questions. 

(\'Jitness e>:cu.sed.) 

-- 0 --

THE COURT~ I~ thcr.e any furth~r teztirnony? 

MR. SMITH: I believe that • s all. the test.imon}', 

at least at this time, your P..;:,nor. 

MR. CHURCH: I<:c have nothing, yourl:Onor. ~Vc 

close. 

MR. SMITH: Yo:u P..onor, there is one othc.-r 

thing we rna~· want. to present. Ne :nay want to finO tha 

first, the- inforr.1ution as to the property thut LJudge 

Carrillo actually intended to convey to 11r. 11anges in ex-

change for this propr;:rty. i'i'e ca.'ile prepared on the only 

thing that was on the recorde, which ie the only things we 

could find for a clue. F.nd nmv sincG it has turned out to 

be a different property, "'lle do want to look at the pro;:;vrty 

that was actoally conveyed. I";·~ \-.rill get the in£ox:mation on 

that and submit it to Hr. Church, und ndybe \-J"C cun ~tipu-

l~te \1hat it "\:Jas. 

MR. "CHlJRCHz I \>.-ill be glad to sh0\-1 him a deed 

that Judge Carrillo sl!.y.:; he intended to convey, covering 

other propert~. I will b~ gl~d to get him n copy oi ~ 

.::orrccted aced. ~ C'o M • (p 1, cV"J 
~ (f { 0 - r>-7 (' IJ.J(1rf'-
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IN THE MATTER OF 

PROCEEDING OF STATE JUDICIAL 

QUALIFICATIONS COMMISSION NO. 5 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT 

OF DUVAL COUNTY, TEXAS 

229th JUDICIAL DISTRICT 

DEPOSITION OF RAMIRO D. CARRILLO 

taken on the 21st day of October, 1975, beginning at 

10:55 a.m. in the County Law Library, Duval County Annex 

Building, San Diego, Texas, before Walter H. Rickman, 

a Notary Public in and for Travis County, Texas, pursuant 

to Order of the 229th Judicial Diotrict Court, a copy of 

which is attached hereto, and the following proceedings 

were reported by Hickman Reporting Service, 504 Travis 

Building, Austin, Texas 78701. 
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00094 
In addition, the procedure is void and the 

2 
Order and subpoena emitting from the procedure is void 

in that the procedure violates the rules promulgated as 
4 to the Amended Notice of Formal Hearing as to the right 

5 of the official here, Ramiro D. Carrillo, not to be 

6 subpoenaed and not to be required to testify against 

7 himself, as well as the fact that the deposition is taken 

8 before appearance day violates the rules of notice as 

9 provided in the rules governing the taking of the same 

IO and the rules of procedure, as well as this official • 
II retains his right to stand upon his motions in limine 

I2 and motions to disqualify to be filed on appearance date 

I3 herein. 

I4 I think it is proper that I make of record our 

IS position as regards the subpoena and the Order and, 

IG Commissioner Carrillo, in line with that, I will i.nstruct 

I7 you not to answer any questions other than your name and 

IS your occupation. I will permit, of course, Mr. Odam to pu •• 
I9 the questions to you and you will answer the questions 

20 specifically only as to claiming your right of self-

2I incrimination along with the three other rights, and I 

22 will follow in behind each answer with my statement. Do 

23 you understand that? 

24 A Yes, sir. 

MR, MITCHELL: You are not, for the record, 

• 
HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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00095 
appearing here voluntarily for any purposes. 

---· . . --, 

A I am not. 

MR. MITCHELL: You may continue, Mr. Oda·"· 

if you would like. 

BY MR. ODAM 

Q Would you please state your full name for the 

record? 

A Ramiro D. Carrillo. ''D" is for Davf.d. 

Q Mr. Carrillo, would you please state by whom 

you are employed? 

A I respectfully decline and refuse to answer the 

question put to me by the Commission on the grounds that 

the answer might tend to i.ncriminate me. I claim this 

right under the provisions of the Fifth Amendment, the 

Constitution of the United States, and Article I, Seetin' 

10, Constitution of Texas. 

MR. MITCHELL: I am instructing the w!tnt~•· · 

not to answer the question on the grounds it is immster)• 

and irrelevant and beyond the legitimate scope of the 

rules governing the taking of the deposition, and it go«~ 

beyond the scope of the formal notification. 

I am instructing my client not to answer on thr 

grounds there is no lawful right to depose him as to the 

time of taking the deposition; that is, the same being 

taken as it is prior to the appearance date, there not 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 
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being ample notice as required by the statute of the 

taking, there being no power to issue the subpoena and/or 

the Order for the taking. There is no right in the 

Attorney General to act as the Examiner, and the same 

should be taken only in any event subject to all of the 

pleas in abatement, special exceptions, motions in limine 

to be filed by the attorney representing Ramiro Carrillo 

on appearance date. 

Q Mr. Carrillo, would you please state for the 

record whether or not you are a County Commissioner of 

Duval County, Texas? 

A I respectfully decline and refuse to answer the 

question put to me by the Commission on the grounds that 

the answer might tend to incriminate me. I claim this 

right under the provisions of the Pifth Amendment, the 

Constitution of the United States, and Article I, Section 

10, Constitution of Texas. 

MR. MITCHELL: I am instructing the witness 

not to answer the question on the grounds it is immaterial 

and irrelevant and beyond the legitimate scope of the 

rules governing the taking of the deposition, and it goes 

beyond the scope of the formal notification. 

I am instructing my client not to answer on the 

grounds there is no lawful right to depose him as to the 

time of taking the deposition; that is, the same being 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 
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taken as it is prior to the appearance date, there not 

2 being ample notice as required by the statute of the 

3 taking, there being no power to issue the subpoena and/~· 

4 the Order for the taking. There i.s no right in the 

5 Attorney General to act as the Examiner, and the same 

6 should be taken only in any event subject to all of the 

1 pleas in abatement, special exceptions, motions in limin~ 

8 to be filed by the attorney representing Ramiro Carrillo 

9 on appearance date. 

10 Q Would you please state whether or not you are 

II the brother of one 0. P. Carrillo? 

12 A I respectfully decline and refuse to answer tb~ 

13 question put to me by the Commission on the grounds tha: 

I4 the answer might tend to incriminate me. I cla:lm this 

15 right under the provisions of the Fifth Amendment, the 

16 Constitution of the United States, and Article I, Sectfr.~. 

Ii 10, Constitution of Texas. 

18 MR. MITCHELL: I am instructing the witr~o< ·-

19 not to answer the question on the grounds it is immaten 

20 and irrelevant and beyond the legitimate scope of the 

21 rules governing the taking of the deposition, and it go~~ 

22 beyond the scope of the formal notification. 

23 I am instructing my client not to answer on t1-.• 

24 grounds there is no lawful right to depose him as to th~ 

25 time of taking the deposition; that is, the same being 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 
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taken as it is prior to the appearance date, there not 

2 being ample notice as required by the statute of the 

3 taking, there being no power to issue the subpoena and/or 

4 the Order for the taking. There is no right in the 

5 Attorney General to act as the Examiner, and the same 

6 should be taken only in any event subject to ell of the 

i pleas in abatement, special exceptions, motions in limine 

B to be filed by the attorney repreeenti.ng Ramiro Carrillo 

9 on appearance date. 

10 Q Do you know whether or not one 0. P. Carrillo 

11 did obtain groceries for his own personal use and benefit 

12 from The Cash Store, Benavides, Texas, during the period 

13 January 1, 1970, until May, 1975? 

14 A I respectfully decline and refuse to answer the 

15 question put to me by the Commission on the grounds that 

16 the answer might tend to incriminate me. I claim this 

17 right under the provisions of the Fifth Amendment, the 

18 Constitution of the United States, and Article I, Section 

19 10, Constitution of Texas. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

" - •' 

MR. MITCHELL: I am instructing the witness 

not to answer the question on the grounds it is immaterial 

and irrelevant end beyond the legitimate scope of the 

rules governing the taking of the deposition, end it goes 

beyond the scope of the formal notification. 

I am instructing my client not to answer on the 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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grounds there is no lawful right to depose him as to t·h-

time of taking the deposition; that is, the same being 

taken as it is prior to the appearance date, there not 

being ample notice as required by the statute of the 

taking, there being no power to issue the subpoena and/nt 

6 the Order for the taking. There is no right in the 

7 Attorney General to act as the Examiner, and the same 

8 should be taken only in any event subject to all of the 

9 pleas in abatement. special exceptions. motions in limin~ 

10 to be filed by the attorney representing Ramiro Carrillo 

II on appearance date. 

I 2 Q Do you know whether or not 0. P. Carrillo did 

13 charge groceries to his personal account at The Cash Stu 

14 between January 1, 1971, and May. 1975? 

15 I respectfully decline and refuse to answer ti 

16 question put to me by the Commission on the grounds thar 

17 the answer might tend to incriminate me. I claim this 

18 right under the provisions of the Fifth Amendment, the 

19 Constitution of the Uni.ted States, and Article I, Sectir: 

20 10, Constitution of Texas. 

21 

22 

23 

24 

MR. MITCHELL: I am instructing th'! wftne~-· 

not to answer the question on the grounds it is iDunateri-"' 

and irrelevant and beyond the legitimate scope of the 

rules governing the taking of the deposition, and it goe~ 

beyond the scope of the formal notification. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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I am instructing my client not to answer on the 

2 grounds there is no lawful right to depose him as to the 

3 time of taking the deposition; that is, the same being 

4 taken as it is prior to the appearance date, there not 

5 being ample notice as required by the statute of the 

6 taking, there being no power to issue the subpoena and/or 

7 the Order for the taking. There is no right in the 

8 Attorney General to act as the Examiner, and the same 

9 should be taken only in any event subject to all of the 

10 pleas in abatement, special exceptions, motions In limine 

11 to be filed by the attorney representing Ramiro Carrillo 

12 on appearance date. 

13 Q Would you please state whether or not you on 

14 any occasion during the period stated, that being January 

15 1971, to May, 1975, did ever charge groceries to the per-

16 sonal account of 0. P. Carrillo at The Cash Store :In 

17 Benavides? 

18 A I respectfully decline and refuse to answer the 

19 question put to me by the Commission on the grounds that 

w the answer might tend to incriminate me. I claim this 

21 right under the provisions of the Fifth Amendment, the 

22 Constitution of the Ul:'ited States, and Article I, Section 

23 10, Constitution of Texas. 

24 MR. MITCHELL: I sm instructing the witness 

25 not to answer the question on the grounds it is immaterial 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
AII<:;T!N TEXAS 
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and irrelevant and beyond the legitimate scope of the 

2 rules governing the taking of the deposition, and it ~r·• 

J beyond the scope of the formal notification. 

4 I am instructing my client not to answer on th: 

5 grounds there is no lawful right to depose him as to the 

6 time of taking the deposition; that is, the same being 

7 taken as it is prior to the appearance date, there not 

8 being ample notice as required by the statute of the 

9 taking, there being no power to issue the subpoena and/or 

10 the Order for the taking. There i.s no right in the 

11 Attorney General to act as the Examiner, and the same 

12 should be taken only in any event subject to all of the 

13 pleas in abatement, special exceptions, motions .in limil•' 

14 to be filed by the attorney representing Ram:Lro Carr1llc 

15 on a ppea ranee date. 

16 Q Do you know whether or not Judge 0. P. Ca rri 1 J. :· 

17 on occasions between January 1, 1971, and May, 1975. di•J 

18 ever instruct Patri.cio Garza or Tomas El:lzondo or Robert, 

19 Elizondo to pick up groceries at The Cash Store for the 

20 personal use and benefit of 0. P. Carrf llo and charge 

21 such groceries to the account of 0. p, Carr:l.llo? 

22 A I respectfully decline and refuse to answer th~ 

23 question put to me by the Commissf.on on the grounds that 

24 the answer m:l.ght tend to i.ncrimins te me. I claim th 1 s 

25 right under the provisions of the Fifth Amendment, the 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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0 
Constitution of the United States, and Article I, Section 

10, Constitution of Texas. 

MR. MITCHELL: I am instructing the witness 

not to answer the question on the grounds it is immaterial 

and irrelevant and beyond the legitimate scope of the 

rules governing the taking of the deposition, end it goes 

beyond the scope of the formal notification. 

I am instructing my client not to answer on the 

grounds there is no lawful right to depose him as to the 

time of taking the deposition; that is, the same being 

taken as it is prior to the appearance date, there not 

being ample notice as required by the statute of the 

taking, there being no power to issue the subpoena and/or 

the Order for the taking. There is no right in the 

Attorney General to act as the Examiner, and the same 

should be taken only in any event subject to all of the 

pleas in abatement, special e~ceptlons, motions in limine 

to be filed by the attorney representing Ramiro Carrillo 

on appearance date. 

Q On any occasion did you, Ramiro Carrillo, on 

any occasion between January 1, 1971, and May, 1975, ever 

instruct Patricio Garza, Tomas Elizondo, or Roberto 

Elizondo to pick up groceries at The Cash Store for the 

personal use and benefit of 0. P. Carrillo and charge 

such groceries to the account of 0. P. Carrillo? 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 



14 
00103 

A I respectfully decline and refuse to answer the 

" question put to me by the Commission on the grounds that 

3 the answer might tend to incriminate me. I claim this 

4 right under the provisions of the Fifth Amendment, the 

5 Constitution of the United States, and Article I, Section 

6 10, Constitution of Texas. 

i MR. MITCHELL: I am instructing the witness 

8 not to answer the question on the grounds it is immaterial 

9 and irrelevant and beyond the legitimate scope of the 

IO rules governing the taking of the deposition, and it goes 

II beyond the scope of the formal notification. 

12 I am instructing my client not to answer on the 

13 grounds there is no lawful right to depose him as to the 

14 time of taking the deposition; that is, the same being 

I5 taken as it is prior to the appearance date, there not 

16 being ample notice as required by the statute of the 

I7 taking, there being no power to jssue the subpoena and/or 

18 the Order for the taking. There is no right in the 

I9 Attorney General to act as the Examiner, and the same 

w should be taken only in any event subject to all of the 

21 pleas in abatement, special exceptions, motions in limine 

22 to be filed by the attorney representing Rami ro Ca rr:l.llo 

23 on appearance date. 

24 Q Do you know whether or not 0. P. Carrillo is 

25 the owner of the Borjas Ranch located in Duval County? 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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A I respectfully decline and refuse to answer the 

question put to me by the Commission on the grounds that 

the answer might tend to incriminate me. I claim this 

right under the provisions of the Fifth Amendment, the 

Constitution of the United States, and Article I, Section 

10, Constitution of Texas. 

MR. MITCHELL: I am instructing the witness 

not to answer the question on the grounds it is immaterial 

and irrelevant and beyond the legitimate scope of the 

rules governing the taking of the deposition, and it goes 

beyond the scope of the formal notification. 

I am instructing my client not to answer on the 

grounds there is no lawful right to depose him as to the 

time of taking the deposition: that is, the same being 

taken as it is prior to the appearance date, there not 

being ample notice as required by the statute of the 

taking, there being no power to issue the subpoena and/or 

the Order for the taking. There is no right in the 

Attorney General to act as the Examiner, and the same 

should be taken only in any event subject to all of the 

pleas in abatement, spec~al exceptions, motions in limine 

to be filed by the attorney representing Ramiro Carrillo 

on appearance date. 

Q Do you know whether or not 0. P. Carrillo did 

on occasions between January 1, 1971, and May, 1975, ever 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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furnish food for consumption at the Borjas Ranch to per-

sons who were working on the Ranch? 

A I respectfully decline and refuse to answer the 

question put to me by the Commission on the grounds that 

the answer might tend to incriminate me. I clai.m this 

right under the provisions of the Fifth Amendment, the 

Constitution of the United States, and Article I, Section 

10, Constitution of Texas. 

MR. MITCHELL: I am instructing the witness 

not to answer the question on the grounds it is immaterial 

and irrele~ant and beyond the legitimate scope of the 

rules governing the taking of the deposition, and it goes 

beyond the scope of the formal notification. 

I ~m instru~ting my client not to answer on the 

grounds there is no lawful right to depose him as to the 

time of taking the deposition; that is, the same being 

taken as it is prior to the appearance date, there not 

being ample notice as required by the statute of the 

taking, there being no power to issue the subpoena and/or 

the Order for the taking. There is no right in the 

Attorney General to act as the Examiner, and the same 

should be taken only in any event subject to all of the 

pleas in abatement, special exceptions, motions fn limine 

to be filed by the attorney representing Ramiro Carrillo 

on appearance date. 
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Q Did you ever have occasion between January 1, 

1971, and May, 1975, to furnish food for consumption 

the Borjas Rench to persons who were working on that 

on 

Ranch~ 
I respectfully decline and refuse to answer the 

question put to me by the Commission on the grounds thet 

the answer might tend to incriminate me. I claim this 

right under the provisions of the Fifth Amendment, the 

Constitution of the United States, and Article I, Section 

10, Constitution of Texas. 

MR. MITCHFLL: I am instructing the witness 

not to answer the question on the grounds it is immaterial 

and irrelevant and beyond the legitimate scope of the 

rules governing the taking of the deposition, and it goes 

beyond the scope of the formal notification. 

I am instructing my client not to answer on the 

grounds there is no lawful right to depose him as to the 

time of taking the deposition; that is, the same being 

taken as it is prior to the appearance date, there not 

being ample notice as required by the statute of the 

taking, there being no power to issue the subpoena and/or 

the Order for the taking. There is no right 1n the 

Attorney General to set as the Examiner, and the same 

should be taken only in any event subject to all of the 

pleas in abatement, special exceptjons, motions in limine 

to be filed by the attorney representing Ramiro Carrillo 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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on appearance date. 

Q Do you know whether or not during the period 

from January 1, 1971, until July of 1974, Francisco Ruiz 

was employed as a welder by the county of Duval? 

A I respectfully decli~ and refuse to answer the 

question put to me by the Commission on the grounds that 

the answer might tend to incriminate me. I claim thi.s 

right under the provisions of the Fifth Amendment, the 

Constitution of the United States, and Article I, Section 

10, Constitution of Texas. 

MR. MITCHELL: I am instructing the witness 

not to answer the question on the grounds it is immaterial 

and irrelevant end beyond the legitimate scope of the 

rules governing the taking of the deposition, and it goes 

beyond the scope of the formal notification. 

I am instructing my client not to answer on the 

grounds there is no lawful right to depose him as to the 

time of taking the deposition; that is, the same being 

taken as it is prior to the appearance date, there not 

being ample notice as required by the statute of the 

taking, there being no power to issue the subpoena and/or 

the Order for the taking. There is no right in the 

Attorney General to act as the Examiner, and the same 

should be taken only in any event subject to all of the 

pleas in abatement. special exceptions, motions in limine 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 
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to be filed by the attorney representing Ramiro Carrillo 

on appearance date. 

Q Do you know whether or not dur:l.ng the per:lod 

from January 1, 1971, until July, 1974, Francisco Ruiz 

received a salary from the County of Duval in the amount 

of $375 per month? 

A I respectfully decline and refuse to answer the 

question put to me by the Commission on the grounds that 

the answer might tend to incr:lminate me. I claim this 

right under the provisions of the Fifth Amendment, the 

Constitution of the United States, and Article I, Section 

10, Constitution of Texas. 

MR. MITCHELL: I am instruct:l.ng the witness 

not to answer the question on the grounds it is immaterial 

and irrelevant and beyond the legitimate scope of the 

rules governing the taking of the deposition, and it goes 

beyond the scope of the formal notification. 

I em instructing my client not to answer on the 

grounds there ia no lawful right to depose him aa to the 

time of taking the deposition; that is, the same being 

taken as it is prior to the appearance date, there not 

being ample notice as required by the statute of the 

taking, there being no power to issue the subpoena and/or 

the Order for the taking. There is no right in the 

Attorney General to act as the Examiner, and the same 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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should be taken only in any event subject to all of the 

pleas in abatement, special exceptions, motions in limine 

to be filed by the attorney representing Ramiro Carrillo 

on appearance date. 

Q Do you know whether or not Oscar Sanchez was 

paid a salary of $275 per month as an employee of the 

County of Duval 1 

A I respectfully decline and refuse to answer the 

question put to me by the Commission on the grounds that 

the answer might tend to incriminate me. I claim this 

right under the provisions of the Fifth Amendment, the 

Constitution of the United States, and Article I, Section 

10, Constitution of Texas. 

MR. MITCHELL: I am instructing the witness 

not to answer the question on the grounds it is immaterial 

and irrelevant and beyond the legitimate scope of the 

rules governing the taking of the deposition, and it goes 

beyond the scope of the formal notification. 

I am instructi.ng my cUent not to answer on the 

grounds there is no lawful right to depose him as to the 

time of taking the deposition; that is, the same bef.ng 

taken as it is prior to the appearance date, there not 

being ample notice as required by the statute of the 

taking, th~re being no power to issue the subpoena and/or 

the Order for the taking. There is no right in the 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Attorney General to act as the Examiner, and the same 

should be taken only in any event subject to all of the 

pleas in abatement, special exceptions, motions in limine 

to be filed by the attorney representing Ramiro Carrillo 

on appearance date. 

Q Do you know whether or not during the year 1971 

Oscar Sanchez received any compensation of any kind what-

soever from o. P. Carrillo? 

A I respectfully decline and refuse to answer the 

question put to me by the Commission on the grounds that 

the answer might tend to incriminate me. I claim this 

right under the provi1ions of the Fifth Amendment, the 

Const:l.tution of the United States, and Article I, Section 

10, Constitution of Texas. 

MR, MITCHELL: I am instructSng the witness 

not to answer the question on the grounds it is immateri.al 

and irrelevant and beyond the legitimate scope of the rule 

governing the taking of the deposition, and it goes beyond 

the scope of the formal notificati.on. 

I am instructing my client not to answer on the 

grounds there is no lawful right to depose him as to the 

time of taking the deposition; that is, the same being 

taken as it is prior to the appearance date. there not 

being ample notice as required by the statute of the 

taking, there being no power to issue the subpoena and/or 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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the Order for the taking. There is no right in the 

Attorney General to act as the Examiner, and the same 

should be taken only in any event subject to all of the 

pleas in abatement, special exceptions, motions in limine 

to be filed by the attorney representing Ramiro Carrillo 

on appearance date. 

Q Would you please state whether or not during the 

period 1971 Oscar Sanchez ever received any compensation 

whatsoever from you, Ramiro Carrillo? 

A I respectfully decline and refuse to answer the 

question put to me by the Commission on the grounds that 

the answer might tend to incriminate me. I claim this 

right under the provisions of the Fifth Amendment, the 

Constitution of th~ United States, and Article I, Section 

10, Constitution of Texas. 

MR. MITCHELL: I am instructing the witness 

not to answer the question on the grounds it is immaterial 

and irrelevant and beyond the legitimate scope of the 

rules governing the taking of the deposition, and it goes 

beyond the scope of the formal notification. 

I am instructing my client not to answer on the 

grounds there is no lawful right to depose him as to the 

time of taking the deposition; that is, the same being 

taken as it is prior to the appearance date, there not 

being ample notice as required by the statute of the 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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taking, there being no power to issue the subpoena and/or 

the Order for the taking. There is no right in the 

Attorney General to act as the Examiner, and the same 

should be taken only in any event subject to all of the 

pleas in abatement, special excepti~ns, motions in limine 

to be filed by the attorney representing Ramiro Carrillo 

on appearance date. 

Q Do you know whether or not during the month of 

November, 1973, Tomas Elizondo was a bailiff in the 229th 

Judicial District Court? 

A I respectfully decline and refuse to answer the 

question put to me by the Commission on the grounds that 

the answer might tend to incriminate me. I claim this 

right under the provisions of the Fifth Amendment, the 

Constitution of the United States, and Article I, Section 

10, Constitution of Texas. 

MR. MITCHELL: I am i.nstructing the witness 

not to answer the question on the grounds it is immaterial 

and irrelevant and beyond the legitimate scope of the rule~ 

governing the taking of the deposition, and i.t goes beyond 

the scope of the formal notification. 

I am instructing my client not to answer on the 

grounds there is no lawful right to depose him as to the 

time of taking the deposition; that is, the same being 

taken as it is prior to the appearance date, there not 
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being ample notice as required by the statute of the 

taking, there being no power to issue the subpoena and/or 

the Order for the taking. There is no right in the 

Attorney General to act as the Examiner. and the same 

should be taken only in any event subject to all of the 

pleas in abatement. special exceptions. motions in limine 

to be filed by the attorney representing Ramiro Carrillo 

on appearance date. 

Q In the pleadings in this case there is reference 

made to a "backhoe" that was allegedly used. Since you 

are not a party to the case. if you would like. or ff 

your counsel would like. I would describe it in greater 

detail since you might not have seen it. and if so. please 

let me know. 

MR. MITCHELL: There is no need. 

MR. ODAM: Okay. 

BY MR. ODAM 

Q In the pleadings in this Proceeding No. 5, 

there is reference to ~ backhoe that was allegedly used 

on the time and occasion in question as set forth in the 

pleadings. My question is whether or not you know whether 

this backhoe, as descri.bed in those pleadings • was the 

property of the Duval County Proclamation and Reclamation 

District? 

A I respectfully decline and refuse to answer the 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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question put to me by the Commission on the grounds that 

the answer might tend to incriminate me. I claim this 

right under the provisions of the Fifth Amendment, the 

Constitution of the United States, and Article I, Section 

10, Constitution of Texas. 

MR. MITCHELL: I am f.nstructing the witness 

not to answer the question on the grounds it is immaterial 

and irrelevant and beyond the legitimate scope of the 

rules governing the taking of the deposition, and it goes 

beyond the scope of the formal notification. 

I am instructing my client not to answer on the 

grounds there is no lawful right to depose him as to the 

time of taking the deposition; that is, the same being 

taken as it is prior to the appearance date, there not 

being ample notice as required by the statute of the 

taking, there being no power to issue the subpoena and/or 

the Order for the taking. There is no right in the 

Attorney General to act as the Examiner, and the same 

should be taken only in any event subject to all of the 

pleas in abatement, special exceptions, motions in 11mine 

to be filed by the attorney representing Ramiro Carrillo 

on appearance date. 

Q Do you know whether or not during the period 

from January 1, 1972, through September of 1973, Roberto 

Elizondo was paid the sum of $225 per month from the Road 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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and Bridge Fund of the treasury of the County of Duval? 

A I respectfully decline and refuse to answer the 

question put to me by the Commission on the grounds that 

the answer might tend to incriminate me. I claim this 

right under the provisions of the Fifth Amendment, the 

Constitution of the United States, and Article I, Section 

10, Constitution of Texas. 

MR. MITCHELL: I am instructing the witness 

not to answer the question on the grounds it is immaterial 

and irrelevant and beyond the legitimate scope of the 

rules governing the taking of the deposition, and it goes 

beyond the scope of the formal notification. 

I am instructing my client not to answer on the 

grounds there is no lawful right to depose him as to the 

time of taking the deposition; that is, the same being 

taken as it is prior to the appearance date, there not 

being ample notice as required by the statute of the 

taking, there being no power to issue the subpoena and/or 

the Order for the taking. There is no right in the 

Attorney General to act as the Examiner, and the same 

should be taken only in any event subject to all of the 

pleas in abatement, special except:l.ons, motions in limine 

to be filed by the attorney representing Ramiro Carrillo 

on appearance date. 

Q To your own personal knowledge, do you know 
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whether or not during the period from January l, 1972, 

through September, 1973, R"berto EU.v.ondo attended classes 

at the McMahon Court Reporters School in Houston, Harr:!s 

County, Texas? 

A I respectfully decline and refuse to answer the 

question put to me by the Commission on the grounds that 

the answer might tend to incriminate me. I claim this 

right under the provisions of the Fifth Amendment, the 

Constitution of the United States, and Article I, Section 

10, Constitution of Texas. 

MR. KITCHELL: I am instructing the witness 

not to answer the question on the grounds it Is immaterial 

and irrelevant and beyond the legitimate scope of the 

rules governing the taking of the deposition, and it goes 

beyond the scope of the formal not:!.fication. 

I am instructing my client not to answer on the 

grounds there is no lawful right to depose him as to the 

time of taking the deposition; that is, the same being 

taken as it is prior to the appearance date, there not 

being ample notice as required by the statute of the 

taking, there being no power to issue the subpoena and/or 

the Order for the taking. There is no right in the 

Attorney General to act as the Examiner, and the same 

should be taken only in any event subject to all of the 

pleas in abatement, special exceptions, motions in limine 
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to be filed by the attorney representing Ramiro Carrillo 

on appearance date. 

MR, ODAM: I would like to have Mr. Hi.ckman 

mark as an exhibit to this deposition the subpoena which 

we referred to earlier that was served on Mr. Ramiro 

Carrillo as Commission Exhibit No. 1, 

MR. MITCHELL: To be taken in connection 

with the Motion to Quash and not intended to waive any 

of the witness' positions as indicated by the record. 

procedure. 

(The subpoena referred to was 
marked "COM-l'' for identification 
and is attached hereto.) 

MR. MITCHELL: I am agreeable to that 

MR. ODAM: I have no further questions. 

Max, do you have any? 

MR. FLUSCHE: No. 

MR, MITCHELL: May thi.s witness be excused? 

MR. ODAM: Yes. 

(~~ereupon, at 11:00 o'clock a.m., the depositio 

was concluded.) 

RAMIRO D, CARRILLO 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before the undersigned 
authority this day of , 1975. 

, Notary Publi 
in and for Duval County, Texas 
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THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
§ 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 

CERTIFICATE 

I, Walter H. Hickman, a Notary Public in and 

for Travis County, Texas, do certify that on the 21st day 

of October, 1975, the deposition of the witness, RAMIRO D. 

CARRILLO, was taken before me and that the foregoing 28 

pages constitute a full, true and correct transcription 

of my Stenograph notes. 

GIVEN under my hand and seal of office this 24th 

day of October, 1975. 

Hickman, Notary Public 
for Travis County, Texas 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 
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THE STATE OF TEXAS 

TO ANY SHERIFF OR ANY CONSTABLE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, GREETING: 

You are hereby Commanded that you Summou. .. _J~~m!..~Q ... c;;~_g!..U~9 .......................... ----···--····-·-

of ....... ~n-~:!14~.ft..r .... Tfi':~~~--------------------Jn. ...... ----~~~1 ............. _ ..... County, Texas, and who is repre. I' 
sented to reside within one hundred miles of the Courthouse of .............. .D.u.V.a.l .................. County, Texas, :{ 
in whJch this suit is pending or who maY~ fo~d within such distance at the time of tria~ to be and !; 
appear be{ore the .. W.altez:.RicJ!ltmn_.az:J~~~t;-~~---~.".'1'_1.~.~:.~.~---·~---~-~-l~~:k~lic lj 
in and for 'l"ravia County }•forthwith ti 
to be held at the County Courthousemxllnll!!X..I.n.Jil.!ln_.l!.bg.~ .• in said County on the_ . ...:.!~.!!~--- ~ 
day of ___ QsJ;Q~-~!: .. -----·····• A. D. 19.'!~--• at..J-_;1.9. ...... ---0'clock..~~--.M-. then and there to testify aa a ~ 
witness, in a certain cause now pending in said Court, styled .. ~n .. t.b.e .. .l1.11t.t.II;J;._J:!f ... J1.!:.9.l;:.!!.!l9.!.'l!l.!!.. j 
.o.f .. .Stll.tD. .......... , jllliiiiiiiiiQIJPW •• !l.!!~.t.UJ.s!!.U.!?.~!!. .. ~!?!!!l!\~.,.~A!?.!! .. -... _. ____ ................ _ ..... ,"MH- j 
----·• No.-.... 2.~.1.9 .. ________ _., the docket of said Court, and that. ..... _he bring with .... J:tm ...... -.and 

-&2'tHM &0urt. at oald time and place, ths below described. ... _b.aou •... J:e.co.r.\la •.. .P.!IP.e.l:.t 

_.ll.llli .. OM.!;~.!J!!.\l .• P..l!!!P..!<_~---··-·············-·-···-·······-··········-··-·-··--·-·---··-·-·-·······-··-·-·-···--

doelnd ·bel.,.. the Court In oald cause, to-wit: 
All book• of account, recorda, papers, and cancelle(l checks pertaining 

~~ · to hia business relationship with Benavides Implement and Hardware 

COlllpany. 

• 

and there attend the Court from day to day, and from tenn to term. untU lawfully dlacharged. 

Iaoued thla .. ~7.th1dm_ of ...... Q~t~:t·-·-• l91S .. , and at theln>tance of •.. S..!;~.t! ... o!..~c!.t<?.!.!'l 
o.u.11.-!~.f.!.!:.!lt:.!.C> -~""! ... " .. .In °:!1d •uiL . 

Herein Fail Not, but have you then 111.d there before aid Court thfB writ, wt:th 7our retum thM"tOn1 
111howina' how you have executed the Mme. 

.-··,;·
1
-1:·, ':Vitness my otflelal alllll&tu:9. aL _____ ..!I~ ... !?./,!!I.C> ......... -.. ····-·--·· on lhl.o the •. !?.~-.. day 

- ~ 1' " ' I ' 0 b 75 f·,c.:._.-_·:·:~;.;::.::·(<jf-:·-·--S.~!?-4!~ D.l&_ ...... 

-.. ~ .. -- ~ : . ·.; :-.. : L\ ----~-----~-~; ___ §~!.!~!.!IL .. ~·--------··-·---------Clerk 
t."': i '·.· . ,;· 1".'1: ~ 

.;,;-~:··· ... \ .. ?t'' ~ 
:~~-~-~r,rr'i ,'\ /. 
· · •strU:e -- to IMw fcntllwlth or a •peritkd dU.. 

229th Judicial District 
·--····································-··--···················-Court 
-----~!':1:!~~-----····-------·-···--.. -·-----.. ·---------Coanty 

By%4o~4-············0.puly 
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Rule• 176 and 178 reqttire clm'k to isStze original, together with a eopy, r .... ca.cll witnu8, and service b~· delivei"Y of 

copy to witn~ Any witness may accept scrvi.ee by aigning tnemonndum to that effect attached t.o Subpoen.a. 
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INQUIRY CONCERNING A JUDGE X BEFORE THE STATE JUDICIAL 

l 
No. s X QUALIFICATIONS co~~rssroN, 

l 
X STATE OF TEXAS 

NOTICE OF INTENTION 'rO TAKE 
ORAL DEPOSITIONS 

Notice is hereby given to the Honorable 0. P. Carrillo that 

the State Judicial Qualifications Commission intends to take the 

deposition of a witness, Mr. Ramiro Carrillo, who resides in 

Benavides, Texas, on Tuesday, October 21, 1975 at 9:00 o 1 clock 

a.m. in the County Court House Annex in the City of San Diego, 

Duval County, Texas. A subpoena duces tecum will be issued, 

compelling Ramiro Carrillo then to produce all books of account, 

records, papers and cancelled checks pertaining to his business 

relationship with Benavides Implement and Hardware Company. 

This notice ls <Jivcn under tho prov.h;ionG of Rule 200, Texas 

Rules of Civil Procedure, and in accordance with the provisions 

of such rule, notice is made by serving such notice upon the 

attorney of record for 0. P. Carrillo, ~rr. Arthur Mitchell, 315 

westgate Building, Austin, Texas 78701. 

Respectfully submitted, 

JOHN L. HILL 
Attorney General of Texas 

Ot.tJf!t_ 
'mm W. ODAM 
xecutive Assistant Attorney General 
xaminer 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of the fore-

going Notice of Intention to Take Oral Deposition has been served 

on Arthur Mitchell, Attorney of record for 0. P. Carrillo, by the 

delivery of such copy by hand to the office of Mr. Arthur Mitchell, 

315 westgate Building, Austin, ?exas, 78701, on this the 9th day 

of October, 1975. 
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INQUIRY CONCERNING A JUDGE 

NO. 5 

X 
X 
X 
X 
X 

BEFORE THE STATE JUDICIAL 

QUALIFICATIONS COMMISSION, 

STATE OF TEXAS 

NOTICE OF INTENTION 
TO TAKE ORAL DEPOSITIONS 

Notice is hereby given to the Honorable 0. P. Carrillo that 

the State Judicial Qualifications Commission intends to take the 

deposition of said 0. P. Carrillo on Monday, October 20, 1975, 

at 9:00 o'clock a.m., in the County Court House Annex in the 

City of San.Diego, Duval County, Texas. A subpoena duces tecum 

will be issued, compelling 0. P. Carrillo then to produce all 

books of account, records, papers and cancelled checks pertain-

ing to his business relationship with Benavides Implement and 

Hardware Company. 

This notice is given under the provisions of Rule 200, 

Texas Rules of Civil Procedure, and in accordance with the pro-

visions of such rule notice is made by serving such notice upon 

the attorney of record for 0. P. Carrillo, Mr. Arthur Mitchell, 

315 Westgate Building, Austin, Texas 78701. 

Respectfully submitted, 

JOHN L. HILL 
Attorney General of Texas 

a{, tJ.a.,.. 
OHN W. ODAM 
xecutive Assistant Attorney General 
xaminer 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of the fore-

going Notice of Intention to Take Oral Deposition has been served 

on Arthur Mitchell, Attorney of Record for 0. P. Carrillo, by the 

delivery of such copy by hand to the qffice of Mr. Arthur Mitchell, 

315 Westgate Building, Austin, Texas 78701, on this the 9th day 

of october, 1975. 

"'/:1::._;.;!{%,_ 
--Ohn W. odam, Exaro1.ner 

• 

• 
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INQUIRY CONCERNING A JUDGE X 

X 
X 
X 
X 

BEFORE THE STATE JUDICIAL 

NO. S QUALIFICATIONS COMMISSION, 

STATE OF TEXAS 

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO TAKE 
ORAL DEPOSITIONS 

Notice is hereby given to the Honorable o. P. Carrillo that 

the State Judicial Qualifications Commission intends to take the 

deposition of a witness, Mr. Clinton Manges, who resides in Freer, 

Texas, on Wednesday, October 22, 1975, at 9:00 o'clock a.m., in 

the County Court House Annex in the City of San Diego, Duval 

County, Texas. A subpoena duces tecum will be issued, compelling 

Clinton Manges then to produce a cancelled check, dated on or 

about January 27, 1971, in the sum of $6,915.55, payable to 

Riata Cadillac Co., San Antonio, Texas, drawn on the First State 

Bank and Trust Co. of Rio Grande City, Texas. 

This notice is given under the provisions of Rule 200, Texas 

Rules of Civil Procedure, and in accordance with the provisions 

of such rule, notice is made by serving such notice upon the 

attorney of record for o. P. Carrillo, Mr. Arthur Mitchell, 315 

westgate Building, Austin, Texas, 78701. 

Respectfully submitted, 

JOHN L. HILL 
Attorney General of Texas 

Od.d 
HN W. ODAM 
ecutive Assistant Attorney General 
arniner 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of the fore­

going Notice of Intention to Take Oral Deposition has been served 

on Arthur Mitchell, Attorney of Record for 0. P. Carrillo, by the 

delivery of such copy by hand to the office of Mr. Arthur Mitchell, 

315 Westgate Building, Austin, Texas, 8701, on this the 9th day 

of October, 1975. 

Examiner 
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IN THE MATTER OF PROCEEDING IN THE DISTRICT COURT 

OF STATE JUDICIAL § OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

QUALIFICATIONS COMMISSION § l67TH JUDICIAL DISTRICT 

NO. 5 § 

0 R D E R 

On this _____ day of October, 1975, came on to be 

heard the Application For Order Compelling Appearance For 

Taking Of Deposition in the above entitled and numbered 

cause and the court having considered such petition is of 

the view and so finds that the relief sought in such peti-

tion should be granted, it is, accordingly, 

ORDERED, ADJUDGED and DECREED that the persons named 

below residing at the addresses shown are ordered to appear 

and t~stify at the times designated below in a deposition 

to be taken before Walter Bickman or his designated employee, 

a duly qualified and serving Notary Public in and for Travis 

County, Texas, at the Courthouse Annex in San Diego, Texas, 

with directions as indicated for each such person. 

Persons ordered to appear and testify, their addresses, 

the time for the appearance of each and the directions for 

each are as follows: 

(l) (a) Person Requested to TestifY: 0. P. 
Carrillo 

{b) Address: Benavides, Texas 

(c) Time and Date to Testify: 9:00 o'clock 
A.M., Tuesday, October 21, 1975 

(d) Directions: 'l'ha·t il. suhpol!na duces tecum be 
issued, compellin<J 0. P. c.:-~rrillo then 

(2) (a) 

to produce ~11 bo0ks of account, records, 
papers and cancelled checks pertaining to 
his business relationship with Benavides 
Implement and Hardware Company. 

Person Requested to. Testify; Clinton Manges 

(b} Address: Freer, Texas 

(c) Time and Date to Testify: 9:00 o'clock 
A.M., Wednesd~y, October 22, 1975. 

• 

• 



·l 

:, ~. 

(3) 

(d) 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 
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Directions: That a subpoena duce5 tec1.<m 
be issued, comp..:-llinr; Clinton t•langes to 
then produce a cancelled check, da~ed on 
or about January 27, 1971, i~ the sum of 
$G,915.55, payable to Riata Cadillac 
Co., San ~ntonio, T~x~s, drawn on the 
First State Bank and Trust co. of Rio 
Grand~ City, Texa~. 

Person Requested to Testify: Ramiro Carrillo 

Address: Benavides, Texas. 

Time and Date to Testify: 1:30 o'clock P.M., 
Wednesday, October 22, 1975. 

Directions: That a subpoena duces tecu.-n be 
issued, compelling Ramiro Carrillo then to 
produCe all book::; of account, records, 
papers and cancelled checks pertaining to 
his buSiness relationship with Benavides 
Implement and Hardvrare Company • 

.. ~. The District Clerk of Travis County, Texas is hereby 
.. ~.' .. 

ordered to issue the subpoenas duces tecum necessary to comp~l 
; ·;;;,· 
the attendance of the abdve-named witnesses at the times and 

1 .J~'~ces designated in this Order and under tt.e conditions speci-
' 

f':fed herein. 

Done and entered this day of october, 1975. 

Judge, l67th Jud~c~al 
District Court 
Travis County, Texas 

-2-
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in the sum of $6.,915.55~ payable to Riata Cadillac 
Co., San Antonio 1 Texas, drawn on the First State 
Bank and Trust Co. of Rio Grande City, Texas. 

(3}' (a) Person Requested to Testify: Ramiro Carrillo 

(b) Address; Benavides, Texas. 

(c) Time and Date to Testify: 1:30 o'clock P.M., 
Vlednesday, October 22, 1975. 

(d) Place Requested to Testify: County Court House 
Annex in the City of San Diego, Duval County, 
Texas. 

(e) Directions: That a subpoena duces tecum be issued, 
compelling Ramiro Carrillo then to produce all 
books of account, records, papers and cancelled 
checks pertaining to his business relationship 
with Benavides Implement and Hardware Company. 

Officer Designated to Take Depositions: Walter Hickman of Austin, 

Travis County, Texas, or his designated employee. 

WHEREFORE, PREMISES CONSIDERED, counsel for the Commission 

prays that this Court issue its order requiring such persons to 

appear and testify in accordance with the above directions and 

the Court issue its Order directing the District Clerk of Travis 

County, Texas, to issue subpoenas duces tecum as aforesaid. 

Respectfully submitted, 

JOHN L. HILL 
Attorney General of Texas 

Assistant Attorney General 

MAX P. FLUSCHE 
Assistant Attorney General 
Examiner 

P. 0. Box 125~8 
Capitol Station 
Austin, Texas 78711 

CERTIFICATE OF SBRVICE 

I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of the foregoing 
Application for Order Compelling Appearance for Taking of Deposition 
has been served on Arthur Mitchell, Attorney of record for 0. P. 
Carrillo, by the delivery of such copy by hand to the office of 
Mr. Arthur Mitchell, 315 Westgate Building, Austin, Texas, 78701, 
on this the 15th day of October, 1975. 

• 

_) 
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IN THE ~~TTER OF PROCEEDING X 

X 
OF STATE JUDICIAL QUALIFICA- X 

X 
TION COMMISSION NO. 5 X 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT 

OF DUVAL COUNTY, TEXAS 

APPLICATION FOR ORDER COMPELLING 
APPEARANCE FOR TAKING OF DEPOS-ITION 

TO THE HONORABLE JUDGE OF SAID COURT: 

COMES NOW John L. Hill, Attorney General of Texas, 

Counsel for the State Judicial Qualification Commission 

(hereinafter styled "Commission") and files this, his 

Application for Order Compelling Appearance for Taking 

of Deposition in the above entitled and numbered proceed­

ing and would respectfully show unto the Court the following: 

The Matter of Proceeding of State Judicial Qualification 

Commission No. 5 is an action brought by the Commission pur­

suant to the provisions of Article V, Section 1-a of the 

Texas Constitution. Notice of a preliminary investigation 

has been served on the Judge who is the subject of the pro­

ceeding (hereinafter styled "Judge"). Notice of formal pro-

ccedings have been served on the Judge ~nd ~n answer thereto 

has been filed. Additionally, first amended notice of formal 

proceedings has been served on counsel representing the Judge. 

Pursuant to Rule Six, Rules for the Removal or Retirement of 

Judges, adopted and promulgated by the Supreme Court of Texas, 

the Commission has requested of the Supreme Court of Texas and 

accordingly, the supreme Court of Texas has appointed a Master. 

The Master appointed is the Honorable James R. Meyers, Judge, 

126th District Court, Travis County, Texas. The MAster has 

set a hearing for Monday, November 3, 1975. 

Counsel for the Commission has served notice of intention 

to t~kc oral depositions as per notices of the following three 

witnesses: 
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(1) o. P. Carrillo; 

(2} Ramiro Carrillo; and 

(3) Clinton Manges. 

The Master has ordered the taking of the depositions of these 

three persons pursuant to Section 9, Article 5966a, Texas Re-

vised Civil Statutes. Counsel for the Judge has advised the 

Master and counsel for the Commission that the Judge "declines 

to stipulate as to the manner of taking the deposition of any 

individual in connection with the •.. proceedings, and that he 

further declines to appear for the taking .•. his own deposi-

tion •••• '' Consequently pursuant to Section 9 of Article 5966a, 

Texas Revised Civil Statutes, counsel for the Commission files 

this Application. 

II. 

NAMES AND RESIDENCES OF PERSONS 
WHOSE TESTIMONY IS DESIRED AND DIRECTIONS ASKING 

THAT AN ORDER BE MADE REQUIRING SUCH PERSONS 
TO APPEAR AND TESTIFY BEFORE A DESIGNATED OFFICER 

It is hereby respectfully requested that this Court issue 

an Order requiring the persons hereinafter designated to appear 

and testify: 

(l) (a) Person Requested to Testify: o. P. Carrillo 

(b) Address: Benavides, Texas 

(c) Time and Date to Testify: 9:00 o'clock A.M., 
Tuesday, October 21, 1975. 

{d) Place Requested to Testify: County Court House 
Annex in the City of San Diego, Duval County, 
Texas. 

{e) Directions: That a s~bpoena duces tecum be issued, 
compelling 0. P. Carrillo then to produce all 
books of account, records, papers and cancelled 
checks pertaining to his business relationship 
with Benavides Implement and Hardw~re Company. 

(2) (a) Person Requested to Testify: Clinton Manges 

(b) Address: Freer, Texas 

(c) Time and Date to Testify: 9:00 o'clock A.M., 
Wednesday, October 22, 1975. 

(d) Place Requested to Testify: County Court House 
Annex in the City of San Diego, Duval County, 
Texas. 

-2-
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(e} Directions: That a subpoena duces tecum be issued, 

compelling Clinton Manges to then produce a can­
celled check, dated on or about January 27, 1971, 
in the sum of $6,915.55, pay~ble to Riata Cadillac· 
Co., San Antonio, Texas, drawn on the First State 
Bank and Trust Co. of Hio Grande City, Texas. 

(3) (a) Person Requested to Testify: Rarniro Carrillo 

(b) Address: Benavides, Texas. 

(c) Time and Date to Testify: 1:30 o'clock P.M., 
Wednesday, October 22, 1975. 

{d) Place Requested to Testify: County Court House 
Annex in the City of San Diego, Duval County, 
Texas. 

(e) Directions: That a subpoena duces tecum be issued, 
compelling Ramiro Ca~rillo then to produce all 
books of account, records, papers and cancelled 
checks pertaining to his business relationship 
with Benavides Implement and Hardware Company. 

Officer Designated to Take Depositions: Walter Hickman of Austin, 

Travis County, Texas, or his designated employee. 

WHEREFORE, PREMISES CONSIDERED, counsel for the Commission 

prays that this Court issue its order requiring such persons to 

appear and testify in accordance with the above directions and 

the Court issue its Order directing the District Clerk of Duval 

County, Texas, to issue subpoenas duces tecum as aforesaid. 

Respectfully submitted, 

JOHN L. HILL 
Attorney General of Texas 

JOliN W. ODAM 
Executive Assistant Attorney General 
Examiner 

HAX P. FLUSCHE 
Assistant Attorney General 
Examiner 

P.O. Box 12548 
Capitol Station 
Austin, Texas 78711 

-3-
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I herE!by certify that .<J. true and correct copy of the 
foregoing 1\pplication for Order Compelling Appearance for 
'l'u.king of Dcpoc;ition has been· served on Arthur Mitchell, 
~ttorncy of record for 0. P. Carrillo, by the delivery of 
Buch copy by hand to the office of Mr. Arthur Mitchell, 
315 Westgate Building, Austin, Texas 78701, on this the 
____ day of October, 1975. 

J"OHN W. ODAM, EXamJ.ner 

-4-
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IN THE MATTER OF PROCEEDING § 

s 
§ 

s 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT 

OF STATE JUDICIAL OF DUVAL COUNTY, TEXAS 

QUALIFICATIONS COMMISSION 229TH JUDICIAL DISTRICT 

NO. 5 

0 R D E n 
~ 

On thi• ~day of Octobor, 1975, oame on to be 

heard the Application For Order Compelling Appearance For 

Taking Of Deposition in the above entitled and numbered 

cau•e an4 the court having oonaiderad such petition is of 

th• viev an4 ao finds that the relief sought in auoh peti-

tion ahould be granted, it is, accordinqly, 

ORDERED, ADJUDGED and DECREED that the persons named 

below reaidinq at the addresses shown are ordered to appear 

and testify at the times designated below in a deposition 

to be taken before Walter Hickman or his designated employee, 

a duly qualified and serving Notary Public in and for Travis 

County, Texa&t at the Courthouse Annex in San Dieqo, Texas, 

with directions as indicated for each such person. 

Peraona Ordered to appear and testify, their addresses, 

the time for the appearance of each and the directions for 

aaoh are aa follows: 

(l) (a) Person Requested to Testifyl o. P. 
Carrillo 

(b) Address1 Benavides, Texas 

(aJ Time and Date to Testify: 9:00 o'clock 
A.M., Tuesday, October 21, 1975 

(d) Directions: That a subpoena duces tecum be 
issued, compelling 0. P. Currillo then 

(2) (a) 

to produce all books of account, records, 
papers and cancelled checks pertaining to 
his business relationship with Benavides 
Implement and Hardware Company. 

Person Requested to Testify: Clinton Manqes 

(b) Address: Freer, Texas 

(c) Time and Date to Testify: g,oo o'cloCk 
A.M., Wednesday, October 22, 1975. 



? 
I 

I 
(d) 

(3) (a) 

rct34 

Directions: That a subpoena duces tecum 
be issued, compelling Clinton Manges to 
then produce a cancelled check, dated on 
or about January 27, 1971, in the sum of 
$6,915.55, payable to Riata Cadillac 
Co., San Antonio, Texas, drawn on the 
First State Bank and Trust Co. of Rio 
Grande City, Texas. 

Person Requested to Testify: Ramiro Carrillo 

{b) Address' Benavides, Texas. 

(c) Time and Date to Testify: 1:30 o 1 olock P.M., 
Wednesday, October 22, 1975, 

(d) Directions: That a subpoena duces tecum be 
issued, compelling Ramiro Carrillo then to 
produce all books of account, records, 
papers and cancelled checks pertaining to 
his business relationship with Benavides 
Implement and Hardware Company. 

The District Clerk of Duval County, Texas is hereby 

Ordered to ieeua the subpoenas duces tecum necessary to 

compel the attendance of the above-named witnesses at the 

times and places designated in this Order and under the 

conditions spacified herein. 

Dona and antared tbiaL1~ day of October, 1975. 

Judge, 229th Judicial District Court 
Duval County, Texaa 

-2-
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